SCOTI'ISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31 December 2018 :

~ Registered No. NI028425"

>
<
Q
2
w
>
-

|||||i|

‘ 30/071‘201 9

COMPANIES HOUSE

[




SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31 December 2018 -

CONTENTS

ST‘RATE'GIAC‘ REPOI%T

_ DIRE;.‘TORS’ REPORT

INDEPENDENT ,AUDITbR;S ﬁepoRT -
BALANcg SHEfTr
INCOME STAT'EME"N’I_':

' 'STATEMEN;T OF chPkEHENSlVE INCOME
STATEMENT §F CHANGES IN EQUITY

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

10
12
13

14

15

16



SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT

The directors present an overview of ScottishPower Renewables (UK) Limited‘s business structure, 2018 performance
and strategic outlook mcludmg prmcupal risks and uncertainties.

STRATEGIC OUTLOOK : : .
The princ‘ipal activity of ScottishPower Renewables (UK) Limited (“the’ company”), registered company number
NI1028425, is the construction and operation of wind powered electricity generation.  During the year the company
continued to operate wind farm sites in the United Kingdom (“UK") and Republic of Ireland. This activity will continue for
the foreseeable future

The ultimate parent of the company is Iberdrola, S.A. ("Iberdrola") which is listed on the Madrid stock exchange. The'
immediate.parent of .the compalny is ScottishPower Renewable Energy Limited (“SPREL"). Scottish Power Limited (“SPL")
is the United Kingdom: (“UK”) holding company of the Scottish Power leited group (”ScottishPower") of WhICh the
company is a member.

On 1 January 2018, as part of a Renewables reorganlsation the company’s |mmed|ate parent SPREL, transferred a|| 367
of its. employees to the company. -

The company is part of ScottishPower’s Renewables business (“Renewables”) responsible for the origination,

development, construction and operation of renewable energy generation plants, predominantly onshore wind, with a

large and.growing presence in offshore wind, and the consideration of emerging renewable technologies and innovations.
such as battery storage. Renewables continues to engage with the UK Government on plans for future investments in -
renewable generation and the electric_ity system, including flexibility and energy storage. '

Renewables has-a successful track record as a developer -of onshore wind farms with a conversion rate of megawatt
(“MW?”) capacity from planning to consent of -over 90%. The business is the leading_ developer of onshore wind farms in-
the UK with a current onshore operating capacity of over 1,900 MW).

Renewables continues to explore development opportunities for further growth of onshore wind. Renewables has also
published a number of reports in 2018 highlighting the cost of capital benefits of a market stabilisation Contract for
Difference (“CfD)" supporting the delivery of low cost green, clean power to consumers as well as another presenting the
_ economic, employment and industrial benefits to the UK of future onshore wind deployment. Renewables believes that a
. government-facilitated competitive CfD auction could provide the’ optlmal route to market for the most cost-effective
electricity for consumers across Great Britain. Renewables is therefore actively involved in a number of power purchase
agreement ("PPA") processes to provude this cost-effective energy to business customers

Whilst UK Ministers continue ‘to recognise onshore wind is an important part of a low carbon generation mix, the
ongoing challenging political climate means it is unlikely there will be any change allowing onshore wind to participate in
.CfD- auctions any time soon. Government advisers, including the Committee on Climate Change and the National
Infrastructure Commission, have also highlighted the importance of low cost options, such as onshore wind, as part of
" the Jow carbon generation mix if future carbon reduction targets are to be achieved. Renewable generation technologies
continue to innovate and this has resu|ted in substantial cost reductlon in recent years for both onshore and offshore
wind, as well as Solar Photovoltaic (”PV”) : -

The UK Government’s commitment to proceed with the 2019 CfD process for ‘less established’ renewab|e.technologies_
follows the second CfD allocation round of September 2017 which delivered strike prices for projects set to deliver in
2022/23 at £57.50 per megawatt hour (2012 prices) a 50%.reduction against the previous CfD auctlon held in 2015.

The UK Treasury $2017 Autumn Budget introduced a new Control for Low Carbon'Levies Wthh set out that there would
be no new funds for CfDs (beyond the £557 million referred to above) until the overall burden of low carbon generation
support costs started to fall (probably after 2025 based on current forecasts). However, given the strike pruce achieved in
the 2017 auction, the remaining £557 million couid fund a'large programme of renewables in the years to come.

The potential lmpact of BreX|t on the Renewables busnness and so the company is con5|dered on pages 3 and 4 of the
Strategie Report. . .



'SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT continued

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE o -
The following tables provide key information relating to the company s financial and non-financial performance during
the year. .

Revenue* Operating profit* " Capital investment**

. ‘ 2018 2017 - 2018 2017 2018 2017
Financial key performance indicators £m : £m . £m £m £m £m
~ ScottishPower Renewables (UK) Limited 423.6 363.6 . 232.0 166.3 44.0 97.3

* Revenue and operating profit as presented on page 13.
. ** Capital investment as presented in Notes 3 and 4 on pages 27 and 28.

Revenue increased by £60.0 million to £423.6 million in 2018 reflecting higher energy and Renewable Obligation
Certificate (“ROC”) prices as well as higher electr|c1ty outputasa result of increased average operatlng capacity.

Operating profit increased by‘ £65.7 million to £232.0 million. in 2018. This was primarlly driven by the increase in
revenue, as well as a reduction in net operating expenses of £21.0 million, due to the receipt of various insurance and
liquidated damage claims. Offsetting these favourable movements have been increases in costs of procurements, taxes
other than income tax and depreciation, largely as a result of increased activity in the year.

Capital investment decreased by £53.3 million. to £44.0 million in 2_018.‘This movement is principally the result of a
reassessment of the capitalised estimated decommissioning costs for the wind power plant assets. . ’

Non-financial key performance indicators . o © . Notes 2018 2017

" Plant output (GWh) . ) . . T ) 3,756 3,536
Generating capacity (MW) : o (b) 1,910 1,907
Availability : i . . : (c) 95% 95%

" {a) Plant output is a measure of the electrical output generated in the year, WhICh in turn drives the revenues of the-business measured in Gigawatt
hours (“GWh").
(b)  Generating capacity represents the total number of MW fully installed within the wind farm srtes This mcludes all turbines erected irrespective
.. of whether they are generating or not. r -
{c)  Availability is a measure of how effective the business is at ensuring wind generatmg plant is available and ready to generate.

LIQUIDITY AND CASH MANAGEMENT -

Net debt .

Net cash flows from operating activities increased by £86.2 million to £282.2 million for the year- (refer to cash flow
statement on page '15). As detailed in the table below, overall net debt decreased by £48.5 million to £1,023.7 million.

. 2018 2017
Analysis of net debt ’ Note £m ] £m
Loans payable to Iberdrola group companies (including joint venture) (a) (1,023.7) (1,072.2)

{a) Loans payable to Iberdrola group companies (refer to Note 11 on page 37).

~ Capital and debt structure
The company is funded by a combination of debt and equity. All equity is held by SPREL. SPL grants the majority of loan
facilities to the company.

Treasury-sen/ices are provided by SPL. ScottishPower has a risk policy within treasury and.financing which is designed to
ensure that the company’s exposure to variability of cash flows and asset values due'to fluctuations in market interest
rates and exchange rates are minimised and managed at acceptable risk levels. Further details of the treasury and
interest policy for ScottishPower and how it manages them is included in.Note 6.

HEALTH AND SAFETY :
‘The company hasa clear strategy to continue to improve health and safety- performance usmg ScottishPower health and _
safety standards. A more extensive description of how the ScottishPower, and therefore the company, addresses health
“and safety requirements can be’ found in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL.



SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT continued

UK DECISION TO LEAVE THE EU (BREXIT)

The UK was originally scheduled to leave the European Union (“EU”) on 29 March 2019. Following intensive negotlatlons
on the subjects of a separation payment, mutual recognition of citizens’ rights and avoiding a hard border between
Northern Ireland and the Republic of ireland, two key documents were approved by the EU Council on 25 November
2018: the EU Withdrawal Agreement (a legally binding document setting out the terms of the UK's exit from the EU,
including citizens’ rights and the Irish. ‘backstop’); and the Political Declaration (sétting out the basis for a future
negotiation of the future UK-EU relationship after Brexit, including UK-EU trade and security). As at the date of signing
these accounts this deal has not been approved by the UK Parliament; cross party discussions are taking place to reach a
consensus on a revised deal to be presented to the UK Parliament for approval. The EU and the UK have now agreed a
delay to Brexit until 31-October 2019 at the Iatest.

If the EU Withdrawal Agreement is not approved by the UK Parliament within the EU timelines the risk of a ‘no-deal’
Brexit- exists. This would probably mean that the trade relationship between the UK and EU would revert to World Trade
Organisaiion (“WTQ”) rules. The UK Government has published a series of technical papers covering some of the key
areas of concern in the event of ‘no-deal’ scenario. Essentially these papers seek to minimise the impacts as much as
possible, including by limiting the scale of the changes to existing arrangements. Nevertheless, WTO rules would mean
that trade between the UK and EU which is currently frlctlonless would beceme cross-border trade subject to customs
checks and tariffs. In the event of a ‘no-deal’ scenario some economic. disruption is expected in the UK and thus
ScottishPower is preparing to mitigate any negative impacts arising from this outcome. A cross-party operational working
group has been co-ordinating ScottishPower’s preparations to mitigate the impact of a ‘no-deal’ Brexit. Some of the key
risks considered are explained in the table below. '

BREXIT RISKS .- .

RTINS

RISK RESPONSE

Impacts arising from the UK decision to leave the EU or market
reactions to events during the negotiation. These impacts could
include movements in the value of Sterling and other financial
|instruments. In the longer term there could be positive or
negative changes in the UK economy and in the political and
regulatory environment in which the company operates. .

In addition to monitoring ongoing developments related to -
Brexit the treasury risk management policy is in place to hedge
financial risks which are the most prevalent in the short term.
Any longer term impact on the UK economy and its impact on
ScottishPower and the company will be managed in line with
developments. A ScottishPower wide regulatory group is
monitoring any potential risks arising from a regulatory
perspective and is engaging with governments and regulators to
minimise any disruption. ' i

Supply chain disruption —import delays of key equipment and
components for major programmes causing project delays.

¢

Assessment of key equipment and components undertaken and
additional orders placed in. order to increase stock levels prior to
the UK leaving the EU. Additional storage requirements also

" |assessed and actions taken to ensure there is sufficient storage.

Foreign exchange rate exposure and addmonal tarlffs if WTO
rules apply. :

Exchange rate hedged on existing orders and contracts.
Legal review of all critical contracts to determine potential
exposure to additional tariffs.

Contractual risk for existing non-trading contracts including the
risk of contract re-openers, clauses such as force
majeure/material adverse change clauses and jurisdiction.

Legal review of all critical contracts to determine potential
exposure and mitigation specific to each contract.

Free movement of labour — potential restrictions on EU
nationals working in the UK or international assignees from
elsewhere in the Iberdrola group, not currently in the UK but
wishing to enter the UK.

Recent announcements by the UK Government confirmed EU
nationals in the UK will be part of an EU settlement scheme.

|Workplace audit underway to assess impact and support staff

affected through the process.
Contingency arrangements being set up for offshore workers.

Data Protection — impact of General Data Protection Regulation
(“GDPR”) rules and status of UK post Brexit could impact’
transfer of data between group companies and suppliers in the
normal course of business. '

All intercompany contracts reviewed to update contractual
clauses. High risk suppliers identified and where appropriate
discussions commenced to amend contractual terms.




SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
- STRATEGIC REPORT continued

UK DECISION TO LEAVE THE EU (BREXIT) continued

Even in the event of an agreement being concluded, Brexit may have both risks and opportunities for Scott|shPower and
-therefore the company. Until the terms of exit and the nature of the future relationship are clear, it |s not possible to be
definitive-about these. .

Many of the risks described above relating to a ‘no-deal’ scenario arise from so-called ‘horizontal’ issues where there
could be issues affecting businesses in many sectors of the economy. UK official forecasts are for a negatwe impact on
the UK economy as a whole; in the event of a ‘no-deal’ scenario it might be sharply negative, at Ieast for the
short/medium term. Variation in market views on this last factor is likely to manifest itself in movements (up or down) in
the value of Sterling and inflation, which.is likely to have impacts on most ScottlshPower busmesses except to. the extent
that these can be hedged.

‘ScottishPower, and therefore the company, will continue to monitor the |mpact of Brexit and take appropnate action to

protect the operatuons as.the outcome of the Brexit deal becomes clearer.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES :
ScottishPower’s strategy, which is adopted by the company, is to conduct business in a manner benefiting: customers
through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and protecting Scott|shPower s performance and
- reputation by prudently managing the risks inherent in the business. To maintain this strategic direction ScottishPower
develops and implements risk management policies and procedures, and promotes a robust control environment at all
levels of the organisation. Further details of the risk management practices can be found in Note 6.

_The prin‘cipal Trisks and uncertainties of ScottishPower (other than those specific to Brexit already discussed), and so
those of the company that may impact current and future operational and financial performance and the management
of these risks are described below: -

SCOTTISHPOWER - GLOBAL - .
RISK RESPONSE

Material detenoratlon in-the relatively stable and predictable|Positive and transparent engagement.with all appropriate -
UK regulatory and political environment, including any _ |stakeholders to ensure that long-term regulatory stability
sudden changes of policy, or interventions outside and political consensus is maintained and public backing is
established regulatory frameworks. : secured for the necessary investment in the UK energy

system. Providing stakeholders with evidence of the risks of
(ad hoc intervention in markets.

A rriajor health and safety incident in the course of - ScottishPower’s Health and Safety function provides

operations could impact staff, contractors, commumtues or |specialist services and support for the businesses in relation
the environment. : to health and safety. A comprehensive framework of health

and safety policy and procedures, alongside audit’
programmes, is established throughout ScottishPower, which|
aim to ensure not only éontinuihg legal compliance but also
drive'towards best practice in all levels of its health and
safety operations. '

Breach in cyber security and unwanted infiltration of the ~ Implen'went'ati‘on of .a cyber-risk policy which provides the
ScottishPower IT |nfrastructure by mternal and external . framework for mitigation: Proactive approach to identifying,
partles . o ) |where ScottishPower is vulnerable and addressing these

points through technical solutior)s.' Educating company
employees as to'how behaviour can reduce-this risk. -
Embedding cyber security in all projects where appropriate.




SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT continued

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES contlnued

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Renewables.businéss, and so that of the company, that may impact current
~and future operational and financial performance and the management of these risks are described below:

......... R

RCNCWADLES i
RISK '

RESPONSE

“|Concerns about affordability of renewable generation having
an impact on chances of success in a competitive auction
process. '

Actions to reduce allocatlon risk, including engagement with
the UK Government regarding access and parameters ‘of the
CfD mechanism. :

Working to optimise Renewables’ portfolio of assets and
approach to development to ensure high performing and
competitive assets will be able to participate in future
auctions. - . .

Limited route to market for new onshore wind.

Engagement with national and local government to influence
and inform policy regarding the role of onshore wind
(including life extension and repowering) in the future
generation mix to ensure optimal levels of deployment,
particularly in Scotland. In addition, exploration of new
routes to market such as pnvate and corporate PPAs .
continues. :

The potential for plant performance issues reducing
availability.

Proactive technical assessments and monitoring of key risk
areas associated with Vwmd turbine performance,
diversification of the service and maintenance model where
rehance is placed on framework agreement for key actlvmes,
optimising service and maintenance activities to ensure each
activity is appropriate based on operatlonal_ knowledge. In
addition, co-ordination with the procurement team in .
negotiating terms and conditions with turbine suppliers and
independent 6perations and maintenance service providers

|to ensure plant performance is optimised.

Failure to deliver large and complex projects on time and
within budget.

ScottishPower and Iberdrola have a'strong track record in-

{delivering large scale engineering projects and have gained
significant experience from developing the West of Duddon

Sands ("WODS") and Wikinger offshore wind farms. Risks are
further reduced by using established and expérienced
suppliers and advisors along with robust financial
management including appropriate foreign exchange"
hedging. ‘

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Heather Chalmers White
Director
47 June 2019




: SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their report and audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2018.

INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THE STRATEGIC REPORT
The directors have chosen to disclose information on the following, requrred by the Companies Act 2006 to be included
in the Directors’ Report, within the Strategic Report, found on pages 1 to 5:

e information on financial risk management and policies; and
¢ information regarding future developments of the business.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
- The net profit for the year amounted to £197 8 million (2017 £139.3 million). A d|V|dend of £150.0 m|II|on was paid
during the year (2017 £76.4 million). .

ENVIRONMENTAI. MANAGEMENT AND REGULATION : .

Throughout its operations, ScottishPower strives to meet, or exceed, relevant legislative and regulatory enwronmental
.requirements and codes of practice. A more extensive description of how ScottishPower ‘addresses environmental
requirements can be found in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL.

INNOVATION

ScottishPower believes that innovation plays a fundamental role in the success of the business. Innovatlon efforts span
across internal culture, systems and academic and supply chain partnerships with the aim of identifying future value. All
innovation areas are developed as part of Iberdrola’s global open and decentralised innovation model. A more extensive
description of ScottishPower’s innovation themes can be found in the most recent Annual report and Accounts of SPL. .

EMPLOYEES
Employment regulation :
~ ScottishPower has well-defined policies in place throughout its businesses to ensure compliance with apphcable laws and
related codes of practlce These policies cover a wide range of employment issues such as disciplinary, grievance,
- harassment, discrimination, stress, anti-bribery and ‘whistleblowing’ and .have been brought together in the Code of
Ethics of Iberdrola and its group of companies (which also outlines expectations for employees’ conduct).

-

Training -

ScottishPower has a contlnumg commltment to training and personal development for its employees with 3,061 (2017
2,900) training events in the year. Much of the training is focused on health and safety and technical training ensuring
field staff are safe and compétent. In addition ScottishPower recruits over 100 craft and engineering trainees annually
who undertake a formal, structured training programme leading towards a recognised ‘apprenticeship or formal
engineering qualification. Team leaders and managers also participate in core management skills training and there are
manag'ement development programmes and modules aimed at increasing leadership capability.

' Employee feedback and consultation - ' .

In 2018, ScottishPower carried out its annual employee engagement survey, 'The LOOP’ as part of an Iberdrola group
engagement survey framework. The. survey provides key 'insight on how employees feel about working -for’
ScottishPower. The response rate in 2018 equalled 2017,-with 75% of employees providing feedback. The results of the
survey highlighted a number of strengths and opportunities and overall 61% of emp‘loye‘es; feel proud to work for
Sco‘ttishPower: Areas of strength highlighted weére in relation to collaboration, performance management and safety. The
opportunities identified as part of the feedback where the ScottishPower businesses have the opportunity to respond to
challenges are around providing more clarity on ScottishPower’s future strategy, enabling employees to carry out their
role and supporting employees to develop and- grow through the organlsatlon These aréas are a focus for the
ScottishPower action plan going forward. '

In addition to employee feedback, ScottishPower regulerly consults with employees and their representatives via a
variety of channels, including monthly team meetings, busmess conferences, health and safety commlttees and
emponee relations forums.

" Inclusion and d/verSIty, ' T :

Inclusion and diversity fosters innovation and creativity, driving better business performance. ScottishPower is working
hard to create an inclusive and diverse workplace that is open to change; where employees feel they can be themselves.
In March 2018, ScottishPower welcomed the steps the UK Government has taken to introduce Iegrslatlon on gender pay
gap reporting. .



SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

' EMPLOYEES continued
Inclusion and diversity continued :
ScottishPower is commltted to pay for performance equally and fairly, and is focused on breaking down barriers across
the employee lifecycle as over time this will improve the Gender Pay Gap position whilst widening the inclusion of other
under-represented groups. Key activities during 2018 included the design-and roll out of e-learning and tramlng on
diversity and unconscious bias for recruiting managers and newly appomted managers. In addition, in. 2018
ScottishPower welcomed six females into Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematlcs (“STEM”) based
placements as part of the Women Returners programmeto support women returning to work after a lengthy career
break: The programme aims to help women grow their career after a career break from the. STEM sector, offermg the
time and support needed to refresh and redevelop their skills to_help them in returnlng to employment on a more
. permanent basis. :

As part of its commitment to. closmg the gender pay gap the ScottishPower Senior Leadershlp Team have set two
aspirational targets to break down the barriers for women:

» Increase the number of women in ScottishPower’s senior leadership population to exceed 30% (currently 21%).

+ ‘Increase the number of women in ScottishPower’s middle management population to exceed 40% (currently 29%).

For more information on ScottishPower’s gender pay gab please goto -
https://www.scottishpower.com/pages/gender'___pay.aspx

ScottishPower contlnues ‘to forge links with a number of recognised orgamsatlons to grow its commitment to dlver5|ty
and inclusion. These include: Business Disability Forum, Employers Network for Equality & Inclusion, Equate Workmg
Fam|I|es, ENABLE, POWERful Women and Stonewall

ScottishPower expects all employees to be treated with respect and’ has supportlng policy gwdance on- People with
Disabilities to help ensure equality of employment opportunity for people with disabilities. ScottishPower have obtained
the Disability Confident standard and are accredited to an ‘engaged level’ with Carers Scotland. In addition, in 2018
ScottishPower was part of an inspirational programme, called Breaking Barriers. The programme aimed to raise
aspirations for young people who have learning disabilities and provide: equal opportunities to access university.
Between January and June 2018 eight learners aged 18 to 24 studied for a Certificate in Applied Business Skills at the
University Of Strathclyde Business School. As part of this experience the learners gained valuable skills and work
experience as part of an elght week placement with ScottishPower.

Employee hea/th and wellbeing
- ScottishPower promotes and supports the physical and’ mental health and wellbemg of its employees through a
.‘programme of health- promotion and information run by its occupational health department.

Employee volunteermg

ScottishPower prides itself in being a good corporate neighbour, prowdlng support to the communities it serves in each
of its busmesses Volunteering is central to community involvement and ScottishPower has an excéllent track record in
this area. ScottishPower’s company-wide Volunteering Policy has been actively utilised by employees during 2018. This
palicy gives all registered volunteers, on an annual basis, an opportumty to take an additional one day’s paid leave, to be
used as a volunteermg day.

IVIodern slavery statement :
.ScottishPower is committed to hurhan and.labour rights and to ehmlnatmg modern slavery that could in any way be

connected to its business. ScottishPower welcomed the introduction of the Modern Slavery Act 2015. ScottishPower B

published its most recent Modern Slavery Statement in May 2018 which was approved by. the Board of. Directors of
Scottish Power Limited and 5|gned by Keith Anderson, Chief Executive Officer. :

ScottishPower-'s Modern Slavery Statement is published on the ScottishPower’s website at;
www.scottishpower.com/pages/scottishpowers_modern_slavery_statement.aspx.
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DIRECTORS ) : _
The directors who held office during the year were as follows:

Keith Anderson (resigned 2 May 2018)

JonathanCole ~ . - . : ‘
Kenneth Peberdy (resigned 23 March 2018)

Roy Scott

Lindsay McQuade (appomted 5 September 2018)

Roy Scott resigned on 31 January 2019 Heather Chalmers White was appomted on 15 February 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY
. In terms of the company’s Articles of Association, a qualifying third party lndemnlty provmon isin force for the benefit of
all the directors of the company and has been in force durlng the fmancnal year. .

'STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS .

The directors are responsible for preparmg the ‘Annual Report and Accounts in accordance W|th appllcable Iaw and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the EU as at the date of approval of these Accounts and which are mandatory for the flnanaal year.ended 31 December
2018.(“IFRSs as adopted by the EU”) and applicable law. . =

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In-.
prepanng these financial statements, the directors are requnred to

e . select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgements and estimates that are reas’onable, relevant and reliable;

e state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

"o assess the company’s ablllty to continue as a going concern, dlsclosmg, as appllcable matters related to gomg
¢oncern; and :

e _ use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to- hqwdate the company or to cease operations,
or have no reallstrc alternatlve but to do so. :

The directors. are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
* company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such
internal control as they determine.is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to’ safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other
|rregular|t|es : .

_ Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and Directors’
" Report that complies with that law and those regulations. : :

' Disclosure of mformatlon to audltor .
. Each of the directors.in offlce as at the date of this Annual Report and Accounts conf‘rms that:”

e so far as he or she is aware, there'is no relevant audit information of which the com’pany's auditor is unaware; and
" e . he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order-to make himself or herself -
“aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This conflrmatlon is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companles.
Act 2006.
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AUDITOR :
KPMG LLP were re- appomted as the auditor of the company for the year ended 31 December 2018

QN BEHALF OF THE BOARD

ARSTTS e s

Heather Chalmers White’
Director
177 June 2019 -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO' THE MEMBER OF SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK)
LIMITED

Opinion / .

We have audited the financial statements of ScottishPower Renewables (UK) Limited (“the company”) for the year ended

31 December 2018 which comprise the Balance Sheet, income Statement, Statement of Comprehensive income,

Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, and related notes, incllfding the accounting policies in Note 2.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e  give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its profit for the year
then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union; and

J have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {“ISAs {UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the
company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”) Ethical Standard.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial statements. All
audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors, such as the valuation of
property, plant and equipment and related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of
preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic environment

and the company’s future prospects and performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are subject to
unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We applied‘ a
standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company’s future prospects and
performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or ali possible future lmphcat«ons
for a company and thls is particularly the case in relation to Brexit. .

Going Concern )
The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’s financial position means that this is
realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its
ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going

concern period”).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis
for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the directors’
conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’s business model, including the impact of Brexit, and
analysed how those risks might affect the company’s financial resources or ability to continue'operations over the going
concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are,

inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material
uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in operation.

Strategic report and directors’ report v
The directors are responsible for the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report. Our opinion on the financial statements

does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Repart and, in doing so, consider whether, based on
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT .
© TO THE MEMBER OF SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABI.ES (UK) LIMITED contlnued

Strategic report and directors’ report continued .

e we have not identified material musstatements in the Strategic Report and the Durectors Report; )

e in our opinion the information guven in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
' statements; and A : : ,

. . |n our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companles Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visitéd by us; or : . -
the financial statements are not in agreement wnth the accountlng records and returns; or’
.certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

e we have not received all the information and explanations-we require for our audit.

" We have nothing to reportin these’respects:

Directors’ responsibilities

As-explained more fully in their statement set out on page 8, the dlrectors are respon5|ble for the preparatlon of the.
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is

. necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error; assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appllcable, matters related

to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either mtend to liquidate the company or

to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. .

Auditor’s responsibilities )
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial.statements as a whole are free from-
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue-our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UKI will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mfluence the economic decnsnons of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities-is provided on, the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audrt work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s member, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the .°

Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s member those

" ‘matters we-are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no-other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other-than the company and the company s member, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the oprmons we have formed.

Al w/t;

. Andrew Williamson (Senior Statutory Auditor).
for and oh behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
319 St. Vincent Street
Glasgow
G2 5AS

2\ June 2019

11



SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET

" at 31 December 2018
) 2018 2017 °
) _Notes £m £m
ASSETS ’ o
NON-CURRENT ASSETS .
intangible assets 3 0.7 0.5
Property, plant and equipment: -1(843.5 1,897.4
Property, plant and equipment in use 4 1,828.1 1,878.2
Property, plant and equipment | |n the course of constructlon 4 15.4 19.2
Financial assets ’ . 1709 1709.
‘Investments in subsidiaries .5 " 160.9 160.9
Investments:in jointly controlled entities and associates 5 9.5 9.5
Other investments 5 . 05 0.5
Trade and other receivables 7 1.9 -
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 2,017.0 2,068.8
CURRENT ASSETS ) ’ : .
Trade and other receivables 7 - 199.9 150.1
Financial assets - .21
Derivative financial instruments 6 - ‘2.1
CURRENT ASSETS ) 199.9 152.2
TOTAL ASSETS 2,216.9 2,221.0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY .
Of shareholders of the parent 804.6 759.6
Share capital 8,9 673.6 673.6
Hedge reserve ‘9 S 26
. Retained earnings 9 - 131.0 83.4
TOTAL EQUITY 804.6 759.6 .
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
. Provisions ) 10 133.0 149.7
Bank borrowings and other fmancnal I|ab|I|t|es - 700.0 700.0
Loans and other borrowings 1 - 700.0 700.0
Trade and other payables 13 . ‘1.0 -
Deferred tax liabilities 12 167.0 160.0
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,001.0 '1,009.7
- CURRENT LIABILITIES  °
Provisions - 10 0.1 -
Bank borrowings and other financial liabitities 323.7 372.2
Loans and other borrowings 11 323.7 372.2
Trade and other payables 13 52.2 56.9
Current tax liabilities 35.3 22.6
CURRENT LIABILITIES "411.3 451.7°
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,412.3 1,461.4
2,216.9 2,221.0

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Apprdved by the Board and signed on its behalf on 11 June 2019. .

Heather Chalmers White -
Director

The aécompanying Notes 1 to 24 are an integral part of the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018."
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
INCOME STATEMENT ‘
for the year ended 31 December 2018

-2018 2017
. Notes © £m £m
Revenue 14 423.6 363.6
" Procurements " (36.8) (29.8)
GROSS MARGIN - .386.8 333.‘8
.~ NET OPERATING EXPENSES (55.6) (76.6)
Net personnel expenses (31.8) -
" Staff costs 15 (33.0) -
Capitalised staff costs 15 1.2 -
Net external expenses' : (23.8) . (76.6)
External services {92.9) .(81.5)
Other operating income 69.1 4.9
Taxes other than income tax _ . 16 (17.5) (15.8)
- GROSS OPERATING PROFIT . 313.7 241.4
A Depreciation and amortisation charge, aIIowances and provisions 17 - {81.7) (75.1)
OPERATING PROFIT 232.0 166.3 . -
Dividends received 35.8 19.5
Finance costs 18-~ (28.3) {15.9)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX <@ 239.5 169.9
Income tax 19 - (41.7) .(30.6)
197.8 139.3

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Net profit for both years is wholly attributable to the equity holder of ScottishPower Renewables (UK) Limited. -

All results relate to continuing operations.

The accdm’panying Notes 1 to 24 are an integral part of theincome statement for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSAIVE_, INCOME
“for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 . 2017

. Note = © fm - £m -
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR o . . . . . 197.8 . 1393
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME o : : : : ’ -
Items that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Cash flow’ hedges : ) ‘ ‘
Change in the value of cash flow hedges "9 - 3.2) ‘ (15.4)
Tax relating to cash flow hedges ' _ . 9’ - 0.6 ' 2.9
.OTHER COMPREHENSIVE. INCOME FOR THE YEAR - : ' . E - {2.6) - {12.5)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ) ) ’ . 195.2 ' 126.8

Total comprehensnve income for both years is wholly attrlbutable to the equlty holder of ScottlshPower Renewables (UK)
Limited. . :

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
“for the year ended 31 December 2018

" Ordinary A
share Hedge Retained = |

- o ' ' capital - reserve earnings . - Total

: - B : £m £m £m . £m

At 1 January 2017 L 5136 151 20.5 549.2

Total comprehensive income for the year : : - (12.5) 139.3 126.8

- Share capital issued ) . 160.0 R . " 160.0

Dividends . . ' - - (76.4) (76.4)

At 1January 2018 ) : .673.6 2.6 - . 834 759.6

Adjustments due to IFRS 9 (refer to Note 1Bl 2) - ) - : (0.2)  +{0.2)

Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 - . i 673.6 . 26 83.2 759.4

Total comprehensive income for the year o . - "~ (2.6) 197.8 195.2
Dividends ' - - - - (150.0) (150.0) -

At 31 December 2018 ) B : } 673.6 - 131.0 804.6

The accompanymg Notes 1 to 24 are an integral part of the statement of comprehenswe income and the statement of
changes in equnty for the year ended 31 December 2018. .
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- SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABI.ES (UK) LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT '
‘for the year ended 31 December 2018

2017

2018
£m “fm
Cash flows from operating activities . ' .
Protit before tax 239.5 . 169.9
Adjustments for: ‘
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment '80.7 75.1
Change in provisions 0.1 -
Finance income and costs 28.3 15.9.
Shareholding income (35.8) (19.5)
Changes in working capital: - A . o
Change in trade and other receivables (52.0) (37.9)
-Change in trade payables and denvatlve financial mstruments 6.9 (26.3)
Ihcome taxes paid (21.3) (0.7)
Dividends received - 35.8 19.5
- Net cash flows from opéerating activities (i) 282.2 196.0
Cash flows from investing activities :
Investments in intangible assets - (0.5) (0.2)
Investments in property, ‘plant and équipment (64.9) (117.3)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 17.0 -
Net investment in non-current investments - - (160.0)
Repayment of capital C- . 2.0
Net cash flows from investing activities (ii) (48.4) (275.5)
Cash flows from financing activities . : : .
Decrease in amounts due to Iberdrola group companies current loans payable ) (51.5) . (692.6)
‘Increase in amounts.due to Iberdrola group companies - non-current loans payable - - 700.0 '
Cash inflows from borrowings (including loan with Jomt venture) 3.0 -
Share capital issued - 160.0
Dividends paid to company's equity holder (150.0) (76.4)
. Interest paid ' (35.3) (11.5)
Net cash flows from financing actlvmes (m) (233.8) 79.5

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (1)+(if)+(iii)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying Notes 1 to 24 are-an integrai part of the cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2018.

15



SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED -
. NOTESTO THE ACCOUNTS
31 December 2018

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION,

A. COMPANY INFORMATION :

ScottishPower Renewables (UK) Limited, registered company number NI028425, is a prlvate company I|m|ted by shares,
incorporated in Northern Ireland and its registered office is The Solmst 1 Lanyon Place, Belfast, BT1 3LP Northern
IreIand , g

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS Co

The-company is required by law to prepare Accounts and to deliver them to the Registrar of Companies. The Accounts
have been prepared-in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EU as at the date
of approval of these Accounts and which are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 (IFRS as adopted
by the EU). The Accounts are prepared in accordance with the Accounting Policies set out in Note 2. Monetary amounts
are presented in pounds Sterling and are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand unless otherwise indicated.

The Accounts contain information about ScottishPower Renewables (UK) Limited as an individual-company and do not
contain consolidated’financial information as the parent of subsidiary companies. The company is exempt under Section
400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirements to prepare consolidated Accounts as it and its subsidiary
. undertakings are included by full consolldatlon in the consohdated Accounts of tberdrola; S.A. (refer to Note 22(d) for the
registered office). : . :

- B1. EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 15 AND IFRS 9 e
This is the first set of the company’s annual financial statements in which IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
" Customers’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial.Instruments’ have been applied. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of the
implementation of these standards is described below. : :

B1.1 EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 15 :

The company has applied IFRS 15 for the first time using the cumulative effect method i.e. by recognising the cumulative -
effect of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and the IFRS 15
disclosure requ1rements have not been applled to comparatlve mformatnon

The application of IFRS 15 has not had a significant impact on the company’s revenue recognition and therefore there is
nothing to disclose in relation to the |mpact on the opening balances at 1 January 2018, the balances at and the results
for the year ended 31 December 2018

B1.2 EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OFIFRS 9 - .

IFRS 9 ‘Financial lnstruments’ replaces IAS 39 ‘Financial Insttuments: Recognition and Measurement’ for annual periods
*.beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accountlng for financial instruments:
classification and measurement; |mpa|rment and hedge accountlng

. With the exception of hedge accounting, which the company applied prospectively, the company has applied IFRS 9
retrospectively, with the initial application date of 1 January 2018. In line with consequential amendments to IFRS 7
‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, the company has élected not to restate comparative information. As a result, the
comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with the company’s previous accounting’
policy under IAS 39 :

The table below illustrates the impact of the initial-application of IFRS 9 on the opening balances at 1 January 2018.

Adjustment .

due to IFRS 9
£m

Retained earnings . -
Recognition of expected credit Iosses ("ECLs") under IFRS 9 . : " (0.3)
Related tax ) : 0.1
- Impact at 1 January 2018 : . e (0.2)
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1 SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED -
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued "
31 December 2018

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION continued .

B. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS continued )

B1 EFFECT.OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 15 AND IFRS 9 contlnued

B1. 2 EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 9 continued

(a) Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities A .

- IFRS 9 contains_three principal classification categories for financial assets:. measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and fair value through profit-or loss (“FVTPL”). The classification of

. financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is.managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and

- receivables and available for sale. IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. As stated above, with the exception of hedge accounting, the company has applied
the classification and measurement requirements retrospectively, with initial application on 1 January 2018, thus the
figures for comparatlve perlods have not been restated. S

Financial assets
The company has classified its financial assets, excluding derrvatwes mto the followmg categones

« financial assets held at amortised cost; and
« financial assets at FVTPL.

A description of these categories of financial assets can be found in Note 2G1.1. A

The following table and the accompanying notes explain the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new
measurement categories under. IFRS 9 for each class of the company’s financial assets at 1 January 2018. The effect of -
adoptmg IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of fmancral assets at 1 January 2018 relates solely to the new impairment

requ1rements
. Original

s "(J:arrvmg New carrymg
value under value under -

Original classification New classification : ’ IAS 39 ‘IFRS 9

-Financial asset ’ under IAS 39 under IFRS9  Notes £m £m
' ) Fair value-hedging Fair value-hedging )

Derivative financial instruments instrument -~ instrument (i) 2.1 2.1

Current receivables ’ 4 Loans and receivables Amortised cost - (i), (iii) 135.4 - 135.1

Other investments : Available for sale . FVTPL " (iv) 0.5 . 0.5

_Total financial assets - ) ’ ) B 138.0 137.7

{ Derivative financial instruments continue to be held at fair value. o )
(ii)  Current receivables comprise trade receivables (including_accrued income) and trade receivables due from Iberdrola group companies. Refer to

" Notes 6(a)and 7.
(iii) " Balances that were classified as Loans and receivables under 1AS 39 are now classified at aniortised cost. An increase of £0.3 million in the allowanice for
impairment over these balances was recognised in the opening retained earnings at 1 January 2018 on transition to IFRS 9 (refer to footnote (b) overleaf).
(iv) The corﬁpany has irrevocably elected that other investments existing at the time of the initial application of IERS 9 should be classified as FVTPL
where changes in fair value are recognised under Finance costs. Previously revaluation surpluses and deficits were recognrsed in the statement of
comprehensive income. :

Refer to Note 6 for details of the company's fmancral assets in the current year. The cIassnflcatlon and measurement
requirements of IFRS 9 did not have a 5|gn|f|cant impact on the company. :

The classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 did not have a significant impact on the company. Most
financial assets continue to be valued at amortised cost and derivative financial instruments continue to be valued at fair
value as was the case under the previously apphed IAS 39

Fmanual liabilities . :

“The classification of the company’s finaricial liabilities has not undergone any changes with respect to the appllcatlon of
IFRS 9. Consequently the “application of IFRS 9 has not had a significant éffect on the company’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments (for derivatives that are used as hedgmg mstruments

(refer to footnote (c) overleaf)).

For an explanation of how the company classmes and measures flnanc1al liabilities and accounts for related galns and
losses under IFRS 9, refer to Note 2G1.2.
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
* NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS contmued
31 December 2018

1 BASISOF PREPARATION continued

B.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS continued

B1 . EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 15°AND IFRS 9 continued
B1.2 EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 9 continued

(b) Impairment of ﬂnanc:al assets

The application of IFRS 9 has changed the company’s accountmg for |mpa|rment losses for financial assets by replacmg'
"IAS 39's incurred loss approach with a new ECL approach. This new impairment model applies to financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than under IAS 39 (refer to Note 2G1.1).

The company applies the simplified model for theé calculation of ECLs. The eompany has adopted the practical expedient
whereby it calculates the ECL on trade receivables using a provision matrix based on its historical credit loss experience
and where possible readily avallable forecast |nformat|on The Ioss allowance is measured at an amount equal to a
lifetime ECL. .

Additional information about how the company measures the allowance for impairment is described in Note 6. The
‘company has adopted the |mpa|rment requirements retrospectlvely, with initial appllcatlon onl January 2018, thus
opting not to restate the figures for comparatnve periods.

The company has determined that the application of IFRS 9's |mpa|rment requirements at 1 January 2018 results in"an
add|t|onal allowance for impairment as follows:

. .. . £m
Loss allowance at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 (trade and other receivables) . : ~
Additional impairment recognised at 1 January. 2018 on: .
Receivables as at 31 December 2017 : : ‘ ' - 0.3
Loss aIIowam‘:e at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 ) . . ) 0.3

(c) Hedge accounting :

The company has elected to apply the new general hedge accounting.model in IFRS 9. Th|s requures the company to
ensure that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk management objectives and strategy and to apply a
more qualitative and forward-looking approach to assessing hedge effectiveness. '

The company uses forward contracts to hedge the variability in cash flows arising from changes in foreign’ exchange rates
' relating to non-financial asset purchases. *

There has been no change to the accountlng treatment of forward exchange contracts used to hedge non-financial asset
purchases. At the date of initial application, all of the company’s existing hedging relationships were eligible to be
treated as continuing hedging relationships. For an explanation of how the company apphes hedge accounting under
IFRS 9, see Note 2G1.3.

" C. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

C1. IMPACT OF NEW IFRS : '

In preparing these Accounts, the company has applied. all relevant .International Accounting Standards (“1AS"),
“International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC”) (collectively referred to as IFRS) that have been adopted by the EU as of the date of approval of these Accounts

and that are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December 2018. '

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the company has applied the following amendments for the first time:

Standard ) ' S . . . Notes

* Annual Improvements to'IFRS Standards 2014 -2016 Cycle’ : ' - {a),(b)
* IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (including ' Amendments to IFRS 15: Effective date of IFRS (c)
15" and 'Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers') . .

* IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ : : : ' o (d)

« Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Property Transfers of lnvestment Property' s : o (a)

* Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share- based Payments: Clarification and Measurement of Share-based Payment (a)
Transactions’

* Amendments to IFRS 4-'Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4'Insurance Contracts' : {a)

* IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration' . : ) {a)
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued =
31 December 2018

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION continued
C. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS continued
C1. IMPACT OF NEW IFRS continued

(al
(b}

The-application of these pronouncements has riot had a material impact on the company’s accounting policies, financial position or performance.
This prénouncement includes amendments to three standards. The amendments to IFRS 1 ‘First-time Adoption of International Financial

Reporting Standards’ and IAS 28 ‘Investments in Assaciates and Joint Ventures’ have been applied by the company effecfi_ve 1 January 2018. The

Refer to Note 1B1.1 for further information.
Refer to Note 1B1.2 for further information.

{0)
(d)

amendments to IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ were applled by the company effective 1 January 2017.

The following new standards and amendments to standards have been issued by the International Aécounting Standards
Board (“1ASB”) but have an effective date after the date of these financial statements or have not’ been endorsed by the

EU, thus have not been'implemented by the company

IASB effective .
date (for periods Planned date of
commencing application by
Standard Notes on or after) the compény
* |IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (e) 1 January 2019 1 Jandary 2019 -
« IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' ] {f) 1 January 2019 1January 2019
¢ Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with (f) 1January 2019 1 January 2019
Negative Compensation' ) :
1.January 2019 1 January 2019

* Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long- (f)
term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures' '
~* Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

. Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement’

¢ Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards {(f}, (g)

()
(f)

 Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ {f), (8)
* Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and 1AS 8 - (f), (g).
‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accountmg Estimates.and Errors":
'Definition of Material'
¢ IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ {f), (g)

* IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral' Accounts' . )
-« Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements' and IAS 28
'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures': 'Sale or Contribution of |,
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture'

(F, (g), (n)
(h, (@), )

1 January 2019
1January 2019

1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1January 2020

1 January 2021
1 January 2016
Deferred
indefinitely

1 January 2019
1January 2019 °

1 Ja‘nuar‘y 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020

-1 January 2021

To be decided
To be decided

Details of the impact of implementing IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ is described at Note 1C2 below.

{e)

(f) The future application of this pronouncement is not expected to have a material impact on the company's accounting pollaes, financial position or o

-performance.
This pronouncement has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

(8)
(h)

The endorsement process of this interim standard has not been launched as the-EU has decided to wait for the final standard to be |ssued

(i) The IASB set the effective date of this pronouncement as for periods commencingon or after.1 January 2016. However, in December 2015, the
1ASB_postponed the effective date indefinitely pending the outcome of its research project on the equity method of accounting. The EU
endorsement process for this pronouncement has been postponed, awaiting a revised exposure draft from the IASB. The effective date will be

amended in due course.

c2 IMPACT OF FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF IFRS 16

IFRS" 16 ‘Leases’ is effective for the company as from 1 January 2019. The impact of |mp|ement|ng th|s standard is

detailed below. The impact of this standard will have no effect on the recorded cash flows

Fror_n the lessors’ 'perspective, IFRS 16 does not introduce any significant change. From the lessees’ perspective, IFRS 16
removes the current classification of operating and finance leases and requires, for any lease agreements, that the lessee
recognises the present value of the lease on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a liability.

The company has.carried out analysis in order to assess whether an agreement is, or contains, a lease at its inception
considering the requirements of IFRS 16. In this.analysis, in line with the Iberdrola group, the company.has concluded
that the assignment of land use does not constitute a lease when the landowner has the right to operate any kind of
- economic activity on the land in order to continue obtaining more than insignificant economic benefits as a result of that-

use.
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
NOTES TO. THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2018 -

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION continued
C. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS continued . ;
C2 IMPACT OF FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF IFRS 16 contmued )
~ Within its ordinary business activities, the company enters into agreements whereby it obtains the right to use land
owned by third partles to carry ‘out activities such as the construction, operation and maintenance of renewable energy
generation facilities, as well as for the purposes of electricity distribution. Clauses within these contracts allow the
landowner to access the land and continue carrying out economic activities, provided that they do not interfere with the
operation of the activities carried out by the company. In ling with the Iberdrola group, the company has concluded that
such contracts grant shared use of the: land to both the owner and the company, thus the company does not have the
right to control the use of the underlymg asset. Therefore, such agreements do not contain a lease i in accordance with
IFRS 16. : :

The company will transition to IFRS 16 applying the modified retrospective method which does not require comparative
periods to be restated but recognises the effect of the initial application of IFRS 16 on the date it is implemented i.e. 1
January 20189. Therefore, for lease agreements in which the company is the lessee, the lease liability will be measured at
the present value of the’ rema|n|ng lease payments, applymg an’ ‘appropriate discount rate as at the date. of initial
application. Generally, right-of-use assets will be measured as the same amount as the correspondlng Ilablhtles both - -
these assets and liabilities will be recognlsed on the balance sheet. ‘ .

The right-of-use assets will be depreciated and the charge recorded within Depreciation and amortisation charge,
allowances and provisions in the income statement similarly the discount on the liabilities will unwind over the term of
the lease and be charged to Finance costs in the income statement. The expense’in the year relating to minimum lease
" payments-under operating leases will no longer be recognlsed in the income statement; a charge of £7.6 m|II|on was
recognlsed in 2018 (refer to Note 4(b))

Based oh the scope exemptions ava|lable under IFRS 16, in line with the Iberdrola group, the company has ‘opted not to
apply it to lease agreements for intangible assets and short- term leases i.e. leases with a term of twelve months or less .
(which will contmue being accounted for as now under 1AS 17 ‘Leases’). '

A’contract may include multiple lease components not all of which would qualify as a Iease under IFRS 16. In line with o

- the Iberdrola .group, the company has opted to not separate multiple components for accounting purposes but will
~ recognise them as a-single component except for certain agreements for which the separation-may’ have ‘a S|gn|f|cantv .
impact on the financial statements.

As at 1 January 2019 IFRS 16 will guve rise to an increase in current and non- current liabilities totallmg an estimated £0.5
million as noted below for the different types of underlying assets:

Estimated total lease liability as at 1 January 2019 _ , ' : i £m
Vehicles - - - . ' S 0.5
Land _— : o . » _ o

- Total ' : N : 05

(i} The value of the land lease liability is less than £0.1 mllhon

The total liability noted above is presented on a discounted net present value basis. As at the date of initial application,
the range of discount rates used to calculate the above pertaining to Sterling were in the range of between 2.50% and
4.94%." -

" In comparing.the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases under the scope of IAS 17 as at
31 December.2018 (refer to Note 4(b)) to the lease liabilities to be recognised as at 1 January 2019 under IFRS 16 (see
analysis above) the main reconcmng items relate to scope changes between the two standards, specifically leases
relatlng to wind farms; and the application of different discount rate assumptlons :

Under: IAS 17, the maJonty of lease agreements for land on which wind generatlon facmtles are located, are des:gnated
as operating leases. On the initial application of IFRS 16, in line with the Iberdrola group, the company has concluded
that the majority of.these agreements do not contain a lease in accordance with the criteria of IFRS 16 previously
described. This interpretation of the application of IFRS 16 is based on international practice in the scope of the-initial
application of the IFRS 16. However, the accounting treatment of ‘agreements permitting the shared used of the
underlying asset under IFRS 16 is subject to revision based on future interpretations. The company will follow future
. ‘discdssions on the matter in order to confirm the reasonableness of the accounting treatment adopted.
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) I.IMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS contlnued
31 December 2018

2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

in determining and applying accounting policies, judgement is often required in respect of items where the choice of
specific policy to be followed could materially affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of
" the company, should it later be determined that a different choice would be more appropriate. The company has no such
'poI|c1es At 31 December 2018, there are no items which have sugnlflcant risk of resulting in a materlal adjustment to the
carrylng amount of assets and I|ab|I|t|es in the next financial year. . .

The principal accounting policies applied i in preparing the company s Accounts are set out below:
REVENUE ' :

PROCUREMENTS ) )

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (COIVIPUTER.SOFTWARE) :

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

LEASED ASSETS -

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TAXATION o

DECOMMISSIONING COSTS .

INVESTMENTS

FOREIGN CURRENCIES -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FrR--IemMmoo®p

A. REVENUE

- The company has applied IFRS 15 for the first time from 1 January 2018. Information about the company’s accountlng
policies in relation to contracts with customers is provided in Note 14. The effect of the initial application of. IFRS 15 is
disclosed in Note 181 1. :

B. PROCUREMENTS . .
Procurements principally comprise the cost of electricity purchased durlng the yearin reIatlon to energy generation and

related direct costs and services.

. C. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (COMPUTER SOFTWARE)

The costs of acquired computer software are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to-use the

specific software and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their operational lives. Costs directly associated with the

- development. of computer software programmes that are expected to generate economic benefits over a period in

excess of one year are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basns over their estimated operational lives. Costs
include employee costs relating to software development and an approprlate proportion of relevant overheads directly
attributable to brmglng the software into use. Amortisation of- computer software is over periods of up to four years.

D.” PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equlpment is stated at cost and is generally depreciated on a stralght-llne basis over the estlmated
operational lives of the assets. Property, plant and equipment includes capitalised employee costs, interest and other
directly attributable costs. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of major

qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, *

are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready fer their intended use. Reviews
of the estimated remaining lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment are undertaken annuaIIy Residual
values are assessed based on prices prevailing at each balance sheet date. :

tandis not deprecnated The main deprecuatlon periods used by the company are as set out below:

. . . . Years
Wind farms - ) ' . . 24 - 40
Distribution facilities . - : 24 - 40
Other items of property, plant and equipment O 4- 12
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2018

2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTA|NTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES contlnued

E. LEASED ASSETS . -

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contams a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
inception date; whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset(s) or the arrangement.
conveys -a right to use the asset(s), even if that right is not explicitly specified in the arrangement. For arrangements
entered into priorto 1 Aprrl 2004, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 April 2004 in accordance with the transitional
. requirements of IFRlC 4 ‘Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease’.

The company class«ﬂes leases as finance leases whenever the lessor transfers substantrally all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operatlng Ieases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement ona stralght -line basis over the period of
the Iease . .

F.. IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS -
At each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carrymg amount of its property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an lmpalrment loss. If any -

such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss {if any). Where the asset does not generate. cash flows that are mdependent from other assets, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

G. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A financial instrument is any contract that glves rise to a financial asset of one entity and a fmancral |Iabl|lty or equrty
instrument of another entity.

G1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IFRS 9

G1.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Recogmtlon and initial measurement »

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. This-
categorisation determlnes whether and where any restatement for fair value is recognised.

‘Trade recervables W|thout a significant financing component and for which the company has applied the simplified ECL
model are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 (Fefer to Note 15). Other Investments are valued
at fair.value at the balance sheet date except where it is not possible to obtain a fair value for unquoted investments in
which case they are valued at cost and assessed for impairment. ' ' A

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement
(i) Classification

Financial assets are hot reclassafled subsequent to their initial recognition unless the company changes its busrness
" model for managing financial asséts in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first
reporting period following the change in the business model. These are expected to be mfrequent and no other
reclassifications are permltted : :

‘ The company’s business-model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
’generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling-the financial assets, or both. The business model of the company does not depend on the intentions of
‘management for an individual instrument. Therefore, it is not an instrument- -by- lnstrument classification approach and
should be determmed from a higher level of aggregation.

. Afinancial asset is'measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

« it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

« its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the -
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the ‘SPPI’ test. :

All other financial assets within the company not classified at amortised cost are measured at FVTPL.
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
- NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 December-2018

2 JU DGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

G. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued .

G1l. ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IFRS 9 contmued

G1.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS continued

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement continued .

" (i) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses :
Financial assets at amortised cost — these assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost usmg the effectlve

_interest method. The amortlsed cost is reduced by impairment-losses. Interestincome, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. Any gain.or loss on derecognition is recognised in the
company income statement. The company’s financial assets measured at amortised cost include trade receivables.

Financial assets at FVTPL — these assets (other than derivatives designated as hedging instruments) are subsequently
measured at fair value. Net gains and losses including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in the income
statement. The company has-irrevocably décided that equity instruments existing at the time of the initial application of
IFRS 9 should be classified as FVTPL. The company’s financial assets held at FVTPL therefore include Other investments.
Derecogmt/on : ’

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is prlmarlly derecognised (i. e. removed from the
company’s balance sheet) when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have.expired.
_(iii) Impairment of financial assets : '

Disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are prowded in Note 6. The company has adopted the 5|mplifled .
ECL model for its trade recelvables

In appIying the simplifed model, loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
. lifetime ECL. The company has established a provision matrix based on historical credit loss experience and where -
possible readily available forecast mformation '

The company considers a financial asset to be.in default when:

« internal or external information indicates that the company-is unlikely to receive the outstandlng contractual amounts
in fuII before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the company; or

« the finanual asset is more than 90 days past due

" Measurement of ECLs : : . :

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the company is exposed to credit risk. ’ :

Credit losses are ‘measured as the present value of all-cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to
‘the entlty in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the company expects to receive). ECLs are dlscounted
at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired f/nam:/al assets : :

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether fmancual assets carried at amortlsed cost are credit impalred A
financial asset is ‘credit- -impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrlmental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the finanaai asset have occurred.

Write- offs .
The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partlaliy or in fuII) to the extent that there'is no

realistic prospect of recovery
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2018

2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES. contlnued
. G. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued :
G1l. ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IFRS 9 Contlnued
G1.2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES i
(a) Recognition and initial measurement , .
The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowmgs and derlvatlve fmancual
instruments. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of Ioans and borrowungs and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

. (b) Classification and subsequent measurement )
Financial I|ab1||t|es, excludlng derivative fmancral instruments, are classified as measured at amortlsed cost.

Amortlsed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effectlve interest method is included as Finance costs in the income
statement. : i

The company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation- under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new |labl|lt\/ The dlfference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement. : . .

G1.3 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING

(a) Derivative financial instruments :

The company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracts, to hedge its fore:gn
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives: are carried as financial assets when .
the fair value is posmve and as financial llablhtles when the fair value i is negative.

The gam or loss on remeasurement to farr value |s recognlsed |mmed|ately in the income statement. However, where
derivatives qualify for hedge accountmg, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged.

" At the inception of a hedge relationship, the c‘om'pany formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to
- which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

" . Under IFRS 9 the hedge documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of
the risk being hedged and how the company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge éffectiveness
requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A
hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:
"« There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.
« The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relatronshlp
« The hedge ratio of the hedging relatlonsh;p is.the same as that resulting from the quantlty of the hedged item that
the company actually hedges and the quantity of the hedgrng instrument that the company actuaIIy uses to hedge.
that quantity of hedged item.

Hedge accounting is applied when certain cond'tlons requwed by IFRS 9 are met. The accounting for cash flow hedges is
. discussed at {b) below. .

(b) Cash flow hedges
‘For all forward contracts the company desngnates all of the forward contract (spot and forward element) as the hedglng
. instrument. :

The portion of gain or loss of the hedging instrument that was determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly
in equity and forms part of the hedge reserve. When the cash flow hedge relates to an underlying transaction which
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset, the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously
been recognised in equity are recognised in-the initial measurement of the asset arising from the hedged transaction.
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS contmued
31 December 2018 ’

‘2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
G. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
G1l. ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IFRS 9 continued
G1.3 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING. contmued
‘(b) Cash flow hedges continued
The. company discontinues hedge accountlng when the hedge instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised,
. when the hedge relationship no longer qualifies for hedge accounting or when the designation is revoked. In the case of
cash flow hedging, any gain or loss that has been recognised in equity until that time remains separately recognised in
equity until the forecast transaction occurs. If the transaction is no longer expected to occur, related cumulatwe gams
.and losses which have been- previously deferred in equity are recognised in the income statement

(c) Valuation of f‘nancnal instruments

In those circumstances where IFRS 9 requires fmancnal mstruments to be recognised in the balance sheet at fair vaIue
the company’s valuation strategies for derivative and other flnanCIaI instruments utilise as far as possible quoted prices
in an active trading market. : .

In the absence of quoted prices' for identical or similar assets or liabilities, it is sometimes necessafy to apply valuation
- .techniques where contracts are marked using approved models. Models are used for developing'both the forward curves
and the valuation metrics of the instruments themselves where the instruments are complex combinations of standard
or non-standard products. -All models are subject to rigorous testing prior to- being approved for valuation, and
subsequent continuous testing and approval procedures are designed to ensure the valldlty and accuracy of the model
assumptions and inputs.

" All assets. and liabilities for which fair value is measured or dISCIOSGd in the financial statements are categonsed wnthm .

the fair value hnerarchy, the details of which are described in Note 6.

G2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER I1AS 39
As detailed in Note 1B1.2 on initial application of IFRS 9, the company has elected not to restate comparative’
information. The accounting policies for the company under IAS.39 have therefore been presented below.

(a) Financial assets categorised as trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less a
provision for impairment of doubtful debts. Allowance for doubtful debts. has been estimated by management,
taking into account future cash flows, based on past experience and assessment of the current economic

_ environment within which the company operates.. :

~ (b) Financial liabilities categorised as trade and other payables are recognised and carried at orlglnal invoice amount.

(c) Allinterest bearing loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction
costs. Interest bearing loans and borrowings dre subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method except where the loan or borrowing is a hedged item in an effective fair value hedglng relatlonshlp .
(see G4 Hedge Accounting). : ’

‘The company enters into'treasury-related derivatives to manage its ._financi'al risk. 1AS 39 requires all derivatives to be
recognised on the balance sheet at fair value. Unrealised gains or losses on remeasurement of derivatives are reported in
the income statement except when hedge accounting is applied (see G3 below).

G3. HEDGE ACCOUNTING
Hedge accounting is applled when certaln condltlons required by IAS 39-are met The categorles of hedge accounting are
conSIstent with those of IFRS.9. . : :

AG3 i CASH FLOW HEDGES
The accounting treatment for cash flow hedges is con5|stent with IFRS 9.

G3.2 HEDGE EFFECTIVENESS .

Hedge effectiveness is measured and respectlve entries recorded in the balance sheet reserves and income statement
on a half-yearly basis in respect of treasury hedging relationships. Hedge effectiveness is achieved where the correlation
‘between the changes in value of the hedging instrument and the hedged item is between 80% and 125%.
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. SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED,‘
‘'NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS contmued
31 December 2018

2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

G. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued -

G3. HEDGE ACCOUNTING continued

"G3.3 DISCONTINUING HEDGE ACCOUNTING

Both the circumstances that cause hedge accounting to be dlscontmued and the accountmg treatment of such hedges
are consistent with IFRS 9. :

G4. VALUATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Valuation of financial instruments held at fair value is conSIstent with IFRS 9

G5. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
This is consistent with the policy under IFRS 9.

H. TAXATION .
The company’s liability for current tax is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantlvely enacted

. at the balance sheet date.

Deferred ta'x'is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on the difference betWeen the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits
(temporary differences), and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are -
generally recognised for all taxable te'mpora'ry differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the .extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary dlfferences, unused tax losses or credlts
can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply. in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax is charged-to the income statement, except where it relates to items charged or credited to equity (via
. the statement of comprehensive income), in which case the deferred tax is a!so dealt W|th in equity and is shown in the -
<statement of comprehenswe income.

I DECOMMISSIONING COSTS :

- Provision is made, on a discounted basis, for the estlmated decommissioning costs at the end of the producing lives of

the company’s wind farms. Capitalised decommissioning costs are depreciated over the useful Ilves of the related assets.
The unwmdlng of the discount is included within Finance costs. .

). - INVESTMENTS - : !

The company'’s investments in sub5|d|ar|es and joint ventures are stated in the balance sheet at cost, or fair value of

shares issued as consideration where applicable. Dividends from subsidiaries are recognlsed when the right to receive
the dividend is established. T . K co-

K. FOREIGN CURRENCIES .

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the spot rate at the date of the transaction. At the year end,
monetary-assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date, with exchange gains and losses recognised in the income statement. i

L. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS )
Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet compnse ‘cash on hand and term deposits which are readlly
convertible into a'known amount of cash wnthout significant risk of changes in value. In the cash flow statement, cash -
and cash’ equwalents exclude term deposits which have a maturity.of more than 90 days at the date of acquisition and
include bank overdrafts repayable on demand the: next busmess day
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued -

31 'Decemb'er 2018

'3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer

At 1 January 2018

: e : . software”
Year ended 31 December 2017 < fm
Cost: o ’

At 1 January 2017. 3.2
Additions - : 0.2
At 31 December 2017 3.4
Amortisation: S
At.1 January 2017. 2.6
Amortisation for:the year. 0.3
At:31 December 2017 2.9
Net book value: .
" At 31 December 2017 0.5
At 1 January 2017 0.6
~ Computer
L : software
Year ended 31 December 2018 S fm
~ Cost: o o C
At 1 January 2018 ! 3.4
" Additions - - 0.5
At 31 December 2018- 3.9.
-Amortisation: S
At 1January 2018 : 29
Amortisation for the year 0.3
At 31 December 2018 3.2
Net book value:
At 31 December 2018 0.7
0.5

.(8)  The cost of fully amortised intangible assets still in use at 31 December 2018 was £2.7 million (2017 £2.1 million).
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS conti_nued
31 December 2018

"4 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) Movements in property, plant and equlpment

Wind

Other items of
property, plant

and equipment - Plantin
power  Distribution in use progress
plants facilities . (Note (i)} - {Note (ii}) Total
Year ended 31 December 2017 £m ' £m £m £m £m
" Cost: - :
At 1 January 2017 1,952.4 175.1 7.2 . 2435 2,378.2
Additions 29.4 - 11 66.6 97.1
Transfers from in progress to plant in use 281.5 . 94 - (290.9) -
Transfers " (10.3) 1103 - - -
Disposals (0.1) - - - (0.1)
Impairment (Note (iii)) (1.4) - - - (14)
" At 31 December 2017 ©2,251.5 194.8 8.3 19.2 2,473.8
" Depreciation:
. At 1January 2017 468.9 32.7° 1.5 - 503.1
Depreciation for the year 69.1 45 0.2 - 73.8
_ Transfers ’ (6.6) 6.6 - - -
" Disposals {0.1) - - - (0.1)
Impairment (Note (jii)) (0.4) - ~ - (0.4) .
" At 31 December 2017 530.9 43.8 1.7 - 576.4
" Net book value: . .
At 31 December 2017 1,720.6 151.0 6.6 19.2 © 1,897.4
At 1 January 2017 1,483.5 142.4 5.7 2435 1,875.1
The net book value of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2017 is analysed as foIIows
Property, plant and equipment in use 1,720.6 151.0 6.6 - 1,878.2
Property, plant and equipment in the course of : o
construction . - - - 19.2 19.2
1,720.6 151.0 6.6 19.2 1,897.4 .
Other items of
property, plant .
Wind and equipment . Plantin
power Distribution in use progress
plants facilities {Note (i) {Note (ii)) Total
‘Year ended 31 December 2018 £m £m £m £m £m
- Cost: . : : .
At 1 January 2018 2,251.5 194.8 83 19.2 2,473.8
Additions (Note (iv)) (19.0) - 2.0 60.5 . 435
Transfers from in progress to plant in use 46.5° 1.8 - (48.3) -
Disposals " (1.5) - - (16.0) - (17.5)
Impairment (Note iii)) (1.6) - - ) - ~ (1.6)
At 31 December 2018 2,275.9 - 196.6 10.3 15.4 2,498.2
Depreciation: .
At 1January 2018 530.9 438 1.7 - 576.4
Depreciation for the year 74.3 4.6 0.3 - 79.2
Disposals {0.5) - - - (0.5)
impairment (Note (iii)) - {0.4) - - - -(0.4)
At 31 December 2018 604.3 48.4 2.0 - 654.7 .
" Net book value: . . . -
At 31 December 2018 ' . 1,671.6 .. 148.2 " 8.3 - 15.4 1,843.5
At 1 January 2018 1,720.6 151.0 6.6 19.2 1,897.4
The net book value of property, plant and equnpment at 31 December 2018 is analysed as follows
Property, plant and equipment in use . 1,671.6 148.2 83 - 1,828.1
Property, plant and equlpment in the course of . ]
construction - - - 154 .15.4
1,671.6 - 148.2 8.3 15.4 1,843.5
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SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
"NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
" 31 December 2018 '

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT contmued _
(a) Movements in property, plant and equipment continued

{i) The category ‘Other items of property, plant and equipment in use’ principally comprises land and IT equipment.

(i)  The category ‘Plant in progress’ principally comprises wind power plants in the course of construction.

(iii) -‘The impairment charge of £1.2 million for 2018 and £1.0 million for 2017 comprised the write-off of operational wind assets followmg fire

. .. damage. The charges are included within the Depreciation and amortisation charge, allowances and provisions line in the income statement.

(iv)  The reduction of £19.0 million in the wind power plant assets in 2018 resulted from a reassessment of future estimated decommissioning costs

(v}  Interest of £1.0 million on the funding attrlbutable to major capital pro;ects was capitalised during 2017 at a rate of 1.5%. No interest was

’ capitalised durmg 2018.

(vi)  Included within Other operating income in the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2018 is nil (2017 £1 7- million) relating to .
. compensation receivable from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up.

(vii) . The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use at 31 December 2018 was £1.4 mllluon (2017 £1.2 million)..

- {viii) Included within the cost of property, plant and equment are assets in use not SUbJECt to depreuatlon being land of £6.1 m||lnon (2017 £4.8

mrllron) .

(b) Operating lease arrangements'

. 2018 2017
(|) Operating lease payments . : : ) L £m fm
Minimum lease payments under operating Ieases recognised as an expense in the year 7.6 . 81
Contingent based operating. lease rents recognised as an.expense in the year . . 7.8 © 1.8
X : : : ‘ 15.4 9.9
o : _ ;o 4 S 2018 2017
(i) Operating lease commitments. o " fm: £m
Within one year . . . L . g - - 8.4 7.8
Between one and five years . . : 31.5 ) 28.7
More than five years , : B : 120.0 - . 79.3
‘ ‘ : < 159.9 115.8
(c) Capital commitments A :
' ' 2018 - 2017
. : - ) . . fm - . £fm
Contracted but not provided L . : - 74" 28.4
5  INVESTMENTS
(a) Movements in investments
' ' ' Subsidiary - Jointly .
undertakings controlied - Other .
' shares ' entities investments " Total
. ’ Notes : £fm £m ) £m S f£m’
At 1 January 2017 - C 4 0.9 © 115 0.5 129
Additions . (i 1600 - - - 1600
Repayment of capital . (ii) - (2.0) _ - (2.0)
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 . - 160.9 - 9.5 .. 0.5 170.9

(i) On 11 Décember.2017, the company subscribed for and was allotted an addmonal 160, 000 000 ordinary shares of £1 each in ScottlshPower

. Renewables (WODS) Limited for a consideration of £160.0 million.”
(i) "On 10 November 2017, the company’s 50% joint venture, East Anglia Offshore Wind Limited' (”EAOW") repaid share capital of £2.0 million to the

company.
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5. INVESTMENTS continued
(b) Subsndlanes and joint ventures

. The subsidiaries and joint ventures of the company at 31 December 2018 are as set out below:
) Reglstered oftice EqUIty lnterest

and countryof  in ordinary

. incorporation shares )
- Name ) - Principal activities © (Note (i) 2018 2017 Notes
Subsidiaries - ’ ' : X . )
"Coldham Windfarm L|m|ted : ~ Operation of an onshore wind farm (A)- - . 80% 80%
East Anglia One Limited . . Development and construction of offshore (B) 100% 100%
. , B wind farm ' )
East Anglia One North Limited Development of offshore wind farm (B) 100% 100% (i)
East Anglia Three Limited : : Development of offshore wind farm (8) © 100% 100%
East Anglia Two Limited ' De\'/elop‘ment of offshore wind farm (B) 100% 100% (i)
ScottishPower Renewables (WODS) Limited  Operation of an offshore wind farm () = 100% 100%
Joint ventures : o L
Celtpower Limited Operation of an onshore wind farm . (A) - 50% 50%
East Anglia Offshore Wind Limited - Commercial operation of offshore = (8) 50% 50%
o meteorological masts R B .
. Morecambe Wind Limited Co : Provision of operational services - - (D) © 50% . 50% (i}

(i) The registered offices of the subsidiaries and joint ventures are as listed below, along with their countries of incorporation. Where the registered
_ office is in England, it is registered in England and Wales. '
(A) 3 Prenton Way, Prenton, CH43 3ET, England
(B)  3rd Floor, 1 Tudor Street, London, EC4Y OAH, England
(C) 320 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, G2 5AD, Scotland
: (D) * 5 Howick-Place, London, SW1P 1WG, England :
(i)  East Anglia One North Limited and East Anglia Two Limited were incorporated on 21 December 2017.
(i)  The investment in Morecambe Wind Limited is an indirect holding.
(iv)  All entities are direct holdings of the company unless otherwise stated

6 - FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS
The effect of initially applying IFRS 9 on the company’s Accounts is-detailed in Note 1B1.2. Due to the transmon method

chosen, comparative information has not been presented to reflect the new requirements.

s

(a)' Carrying value of financial instruments
The table below sets out the carrying amount and fair value of the company' s financial instruments that are within the

scope of IFRS 9.

2018 . 2017
Carrying Fair "~ Carrying Fair-
amount. value . Classification.  amount value Classification under
Notes £m £m . underIFRS9 £m fm ; I1AS 39
Financial assets : . .
_ . Fair value hedging o ‘Fair value hedging -
Derivative financial instruments )] ‘- - instrument 2.1 2.1 instrument -
. B . ‘ : Loans and
"Receivables - - (i) 185.2 '185.2 . Amortised cost =~ 1354 135.4 Receivables
" Other investments 05" 0.5 FVTPL 0.5 05 Available for sale
- Financial liabilities B
4 . Loans and
Loans and other borrowings - (i) (1,023.7)  (1,103.6) Amortised cost  (1,072.2) (1,189.4) Receivables
S L . ' . ~ Loans and
Payables - . - (i) (52.4) (52.4) - Amortisedcost ~ (56.9) (56.9) Receivables

_ The carrying amount of these financial instruments is calculated as set out in Note 2G. With the exception of Loans and
other borrowings, the carrying value of financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of fair value The fair value of.
Loans and other borrowings is calculated as set out in footnote (iii) below '

(i) Further detail on derivative financial instruments is disclosed in Note 6(c).
(i}  Balances outwith the scope of IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 have been excluded, namely prepayments, other tax recelvables and other taxes and social

security.
" (iii)  The fair value of all other loans and borrowungs is calculated using a dlscounted cash flow.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
(b) Measurement of financial instruments

. The company holds certain financial instruments which are measured in the balance sheet at fair value as detailed in .
Note 6(a) above. The company uses the following hlerarchy for determining and dlsclosmg the fair value of financial
instruments by valuatlon technlque : : :

~Level 1: Quoted (uniadjusted) prices in active' markets for identical assets or |IabI|ItIeS :
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs whnch have a srgnlflcant effect on the recorded falr value are observable,

either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a srgmflcant effect on the recorded falr value that are not based on~

observable market data

In both the current and prior year, all other investments held by the company are LeveI 1. In both the current and prior .
year, all derivatives held by the company are Level 2. . :

Level 2 foreign exchange derivatives comprise forward foreign exchange contracts. Forward foreign exchange contracts
'are falr valued usmg forward exchange rates that are quoted in an active market.

The company recognlses transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting penod dunng
which the change occurred There were no transfers in the current or prlor year. ‘

(c) Analysrs of carrying value of derivative financial instruments , .
' 2018 : ‘ 2017

Assets Liabilities . Assets - Liabilities

Non- Non- " Non- - . Non-

Current  current . Current - current ~ Current current Current  current

. . £m “£m £m " £m £m fm ~ fm = fm

Hedging derivatives T

Exchange rate hedges’

Cash flow. hedge - . .

- Foreign exchange rate - - - Lo - 2.1 - - -

(d) Fmancral risk: management :

The company’s principal financial liabilities, comprlse Ioans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The-company has trade and other receivables
that arise-directly from its operations. The company also holds other investments and enters into derivative contracts.

The company has exposure to the followmg nsks arlsmg from the: above flnanC|a| mstruments
i.  Creditrisk; and
ii. Treasury risk (comprlsmg both liquidity and market rlsk)

An extensive description of thns risk management framework of Scott|shPower and therefore the company, can. be found
in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL.

(l) Credit risk . :

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty quI not meet its contractual obllgatlons under a financial mstrument or.
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to-credit risk from its operating activities
: (prlmarlly trade recelvables) foreign exchange transactions and other fmancnal mstruments -

The‘carrymg amount of financial assets and contracts represent the maximum credit exposure to the company. .
The company is exposed to both settlement risk (defined as the risk of a counterpa'rty failing to pay for energy and/or

services which have been delivered), as well as replacement risk (defined as the risk of incurring add|t|onal costs in order
to replace asaleor purchase contract following a counterparty default).

31



SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

(d) Financial risk management continued
(i) Credit risk continued '

Credit risk management .
Credit risk in respect of external customers is mltlgated by contracting wrth multlple counterpartles and limiting exposure

to mdlwdual counterparties to clearly defmed limits based upon the risk of counterparty default

- Credlt rlsk from Iberdrola group companies is considered to be low as no Iberdrola group company has a credlt ratmg
lower than-BBB+ (in line with Standard and Poor’s external credit ratings). .

At 31 Decemberv2018 and 2017, the company evaluated the concentration of risk with respect to financial assets as low,
with no material concentration of credit' risk in company arising from one particular counterparty. .

Trade receivables (mctudmg recervables from Iberdrola group companies) *

The company uses the simplified model approach to measure ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates represent a
Ilfetlme ECL and are based on the Iberdrola group s historical Ioss expenence and default rates

The table below illustrates the ECL on Trade recelvables: .
) Ageing of trade receivables

Greater

0-6 than 6
. months months ~ Total
At 31 December 2018 ' S = . fm . Em - £m
Weighted Average Expected Loss Rate (%) . ’ C ©0.2% 0.2% 0.2%
Gross Carrying value ’ . . : © 57.8. 127.7 185.5
Loss allowance ’ . (0.1) (0.2) - (0.3)
Net carrying value . . ' . _ 57.7 127.5 '185.2

| ‘Ageing of trade receivables
Greater
L, 0-6 thané

. A o ‘months months Total
As at 1 January 2018 ' : . fm £m T fm
Weighted Average Expected Loss Rate (%) 0.4% 0.2% - 0.2%
Gross Carrying value - o A o ' © 264 109.0 135.4
Loss allowance i . o : - (0.1) (0.2) {0.3)
Net carrying value - . : 0263 . 108.8 135. 1

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectatlon of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the company.

. Refer to the table below reconciling the movement in the opening to the closing loss allowance. -

_ Reconciliation of opening to closing loss allowance : . :
The closing loss allowances for all financial assets measured at amortlsed cost asat3l December 2018 reconciles to the
opemng loss allowances as follows: .

Trade

receivables

. R ) B £fm
Balance as at 31:December 2017 under I1AS 39 . ' ' ) -
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS9 - ' - ) .03
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under IFRS9 . ’ : ' : 03
Movement in loss allowance recognised in the income statement . S -

At 31 December 2018 2 : ' o ' . . 0.3
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6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
(d) Financial risk management continued

. (ii) Treasury risk
Treasury risk is comprised of Ilquadlty risk and market risk. ScottishPower’s cash management and short-term financing

. activity and therefore that of the company is integrated with Iberdrola’s. The company produces short-term rolling cash-
row requirements and if necessary any required funding is obtained via ScottishPower’s credit facilities already in place.

~ Treasury I|qu|d|ty risk management

ScottishPower’s I|qu1d|ty position and short- term financing activities, and therefore that of the company, are integrated
and aligned with Iberdrola’s. Liquidity risk, the risk that the company will have insufficient.funds to meet its liabilities, is
managed by Iberdrola group Treasury, who are responsible for arranging banking facilities on behalf of ScottlshPower
~ SCOttlSh Power Limited is the principal counterparty for the loan balances due to the company:

The tables below summarise the matunty profile of the companys fmancnal liabilities as at 31 December based on.
contractual- undrscounted payments . :

Financial liabilities

2018 :
. ’ ’ . 2024 and
_ . _ 2019 2020 2021 . 2022 2023 thereafter Total
Cash outflows -fm - £fm fm - £fm £m £m £m
. Loans and other b'orrowings . 349.7 21.4 (214 21.4 21.4° 785.4  1,220.7
Payables* : - ) : 46.1 . .04 - 0.3 0.3 - - 47.1
) 395.8 21.8 21,7 217 214 785.4 © 1,267.8
2017 _
. - 2023 and
_ 2018 -~ 2019 2020 2021 2022 thereafter Total
Cash outflows . 3 £m £m Em fm £m | £fm - £m -
Derivative financial instruments - ‘ 19.4 - - - - - 19.4
Loans and other borrowings 407.5 21.4 21.4. 21.4 21.4 806.8 1,299.9
Payables* ‘ © 423 - - - - - 42.3
469.2 214 --21.4 21.4 « 214 - 806.8 1,361.6

* Contractual cash flows exclude accrued interest as these cash flows are included within loans and other borrowings. ’

The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the
reporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates change :

The future cash flows on derivative i_nstruments may be different from the amounts in the table as interest rates and’
exchange rates or the relevant conditions underlying the calculation change. Except for these financial liabilities, it is not
expected that the cash flows mcluded in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different
amounts: :

Treasury market risk management
Market risk is the risk of loss that results from changes in market rates (interest rates and forelgn currency) Within the
Treasury function ScottishPower, and therefore the company, utilises a number of financial mstruments to manage

interest rate and forelgn currency exposures.

Interest rate risk

In order to adequately manage and limit this rlsk the Iberdrola group annually determines the desired structuré of the
- debt between fixéd and floating intérest rate, taking into account the indexing of income either interest rate or price

index. ScottishPower Treasury then-take actions over the course of the year to work towards these desired lberdrola

group ratios. Actions to be carried out over the course of a year may'includé obtaining new sources of financing (at a

fixed, floating or mdexed rate) and/or utilising interest rate derivatives. The table overleaf shows the debt structure of

the company.

33



- SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS contmued '
31 December 2018

6 . -FINANCIAL INSTRU MENTS continued

(d)* Financial risk management continued

(i} Treasury risk continued . . )
" .Interest rate risk continued

Interest rate analysis of debt

2018 . 2017
o . . , : . £m fm
Fixed rate S : ' : : o 700.0 700.0

Variable rate - ] L : : : : 323.7 372.2
' ' - 1,023.7 1,072.2

The company’s borrowings are held at amortised cost. The reference interest rates for the floating rate borrowings is the
Bank of England Base Rate (“Base”). The varlable rate debt con5|sts of a £323. 7 m|II|on (2017 £372.2 m|II|on) loan linked
to Base.

.Sens:trwty analysis on interest rate r:hanges : L
The table below illustrates the impact on the annual interest rate charge considering various rate changes. The analysis -
assumes all other factors remain constant - : )
Impact on Impact on
interest interest rate
- ratecharge chargein

) _ Interest’  Change in in 2018 2017

" Debt category - , ' " Rate . rate - £m £m
" Short-term variable ratedebt -~ - - . Base +0.25% 0.8 .09

: ~ g : : - . +0.50% 1.6 - 1.9

-0.25% (0.8) (0.9)

-0.50% (1.6) - (1.9)

Forelgn currency l’lSk

The company is exposed to transactional forelgn currency risk to the extent that there is a ‘mismatch between the

“currencies in which purchases are.denominated. The currency in which transactions are primarily denominated is Euro.

. ScottishPower board policy stipulates that there should be no significant exposure to fore1gn currency balances and

therefore Treasury will ‘hedge all foreign exchange payments/contracts which have a (cumdilative) value greater than a

sterhng equivalent of a quarter ofa m|II|on pounds. '

Hedging of forelgn currency nsk :

The company uses foreign currency forwards to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk. Under the company s policy
the critical terms of the forwards must align with the hedged items. The company enters into foreign currency forwards
in relation to asset purchases For such items the company designates the entire value of the forelgn currency forward in.
the hedge reIatlonshlp : : :

The table below |Ilustrates the timing of the notlonal amount of the hedglng mstrument and the average forward prlce of

the hedging instrument. C
. Notional amount .

of hedging  Average forward

instrument price (exchange

(maturity profile) - © . rate)
IR B . o £m - (GBP:EUR)
As at 31 December 2018 ] . : B " 1year ~1year

EUR B : ' . 1.2 © 114
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6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

(d)  Financial risk management contlnued

(ii) Treasury risk continued

Foreign currency risk continued

Foreign exchange rate cash flow hedges :

‘Hedging of asset purchases: the company is subJect to cash flow risk resultmg from the purchase of various assets which
are denommated in foreign currencies. The risk being hedged relates to the fluctuation in the functional currency terms -
of value of these foreign currency denominated purchases.‘T_he' company enters into forward foreign exchange rate
contracts to hedge those risks. - : : :

For an analysis of the split of the carrying valu'e of foreign exchange c’ontracts please refer to Note 6(c).

The amounts relatlng to forelgn exchange rate derlvatrves de5|gnated as cash row hedges during the year are detalled in

" the table beIow
. 2018 2017 .

Hedging Hedging

derivatives derivatives

.

- . . " Notes £m . fm
Notional amount i o CL ' K - 1.2 . 39.0
*Carrying amount - asset . ‘ a - - .21
Changes in the'value of the hedgmg mstrument recognised in Other comprehensnve income C (o) 21 13.4
Amount reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve to balance sheet {c) (4.1) (30.2)

(a) The carrying amount of derivative assets is recorded within Derivative financial instruments.

(b)  This is consistent with the change.in the fair value of the hedging instrument used to calculate ineffectiveness.

(c)  The amount reclassified from .the cash flow hedge to balance sheet is included within Property, plant and equipment in the course of
construction in both years

The amounts at the reporting date relating to foreign exchange.items designated as hedged items were as follows.

_ Change in fair value used . :
for calculating hedge  Cash flow hedge reserve

ineffectiveness. balance
. - 2018 © 2017 2018 . 2017
Line item in the Accounts in which the hedged item is/will be included ' £m £m £fm £m
Propérty, plant and equipment in the course of construction ) (2.1) (13.4) - 3.2

The company determines that the economic relationship between the hedging instrument (the foreign ‘ei(change rate
forward contract) and the hedged item (asset purchase) will virtually always achieve 100% effectiveness. This is because
the company compares movements in the fair value-of the expected highly probable forecast foreign currency cash
“flows, with movements in the fair value of the expected changes in cash flows from the hedglng instrument. Forecast
future foreign currency cash flows are Iargely based upon contractual obllgatlons

Ineffeétiveness will arise if the trade has been cancelled, in which case there would be no future transaction.

Hedge assessment on foreign currency denvatlves

Hedge assessment on foreign currency derivatives is donhe prospectively to verify that the forecast transactions are still
highly probable of occurring (for cash flow hedges) as well as_retrospectively, to assess the effectiveness in the period
under review. Prospective assessment is performed using sensi.ti'vity analysis and critical terms matching.

Sensmwty analys:s on forergn currency cash flows

No sensitivity analysis has been performed in relation to changes in foreign exchange rates as almostall forelgn currency
purchases are hedged.. Therefore there is immaterial financial exposure. Any movement in the value of the hedged item .
would be compensated for by movement in the value of the hedglng instrument.
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7 -+ TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Co 2018 2017
Note £m . fm
Current receivables: o
Receivables due from Iberdrola group companles trade- . - 174.6 129.6
Receivables due from jointly controlled entities - prepayments ’ - 20 3.0
Trade receivables (including accrued mcome) . (a) 10.6 .58
Prepayments ) : : : 8.7 89
Other tax receivables . 4.0 . 2.8
: 199.9 150.1
Non-current receivables:
1.9 . .-

Prepayments

(a) ‘ Information about the company’s exposure to cfedit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade receivables are‘included in Note 6. V
(b) Trade and other receivables includes £180.7 million of IFRS 15 receivables (refer to Note 15(c)).

8  SHARE CAPITAL

2018 . 2017
. . : fm | - fm
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares: ) .
673,630,347 ordmary shares of £1 each (2017 673,630,347) .- 673.6 ' 673.6

(a) The shares have aftached to them fuII voting, dividend and capital dlstrlbutnon (including on wmdmg up) rights; they do not confer any rights of
redemption. . .

9  ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS IN' EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOI.DER OF SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK)
LIMITED S

Share Hedge  Retained
capital reserve ~  earnings .

(Note (a)) {Note (b)) {Note (c)) ~ Total

£m " £m ~£m £m

At1l January 2017 ' 5136 . 151 - 20.5 549.2
Profit for the year attributable to equity holder of ScottlshPower : - - 139.3 139.3
Changes in the value of cash flow hedges - (15.4) - (15.4)
Tax relating to cash flow hedges - 29 - 29
~ Share capital issued 1600 T - 160.0
Dividends - - (76.4) . (76.4)
At 1 January 2018 673.6 : 2.6 834 - .759.6
Adjustments due to IFRS 9 .. . - - (0.2) -(0.2)
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 . 673.6 26 . 83.2 . 759.4
Profit for the year attributable to equity holder of ScottlshPower - - . 1978 1978
Changes in the value of cash flow hedges s - "(3.2) ' - . {(3.2)
- 06 - - 0.6

Tax relating to cash flow hedges
- - - (150.0) .. {150.0).

" Dividends . _ .
At 31 December 2018 . ) 673.6 - 131.0 804.6
{a)  On 11 December 2017 the company issued 160,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each to its immediate parent, SPREL, for a total consideration of

£160.0 mitlion.

- (b)  The hedge reserve represents the balance of gains and losses on cash flow hedges (net of taxation) not yet transferred to mcome or the carrying’

amount of a non-financial asset.
(c) -Retained earnings comprises the cumulatlve balance of profits and Iosses recognised in the accounts as adjusted for transacuons with

shareholders, principally dividends.
{d) The changes in the hedge reserve arising from valuat|on adjustments to hedging denvatlves are set out below:
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9  ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE T0 EQUITY HOLDER OF SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK)

LIMITED continued

Foreign

exchange .
rate hedges Tax effect Total
. Cash flow hedges £m £m fm
. At 1 January 2017 ©18.6 (3.5) 15.1
Effective cash flow hedges recogmsed 14.8 (2.8) 12.0
Removed from equity and recognlsed in carrying amount of ‘hedged |tems (30.2) 5.7 (24.5)
At 1 January 2018 - 3.2 (0.6) 2.6
Effective cash flow hedges recognlsed 0.9 (0.2) 0.7
Removed from equity and recognised in carrying amount of hedged items (4.1) 0.8 (3.3)
At 31 December 2018 - - -
(e) The matunty analysis of amounts mcluded in the hedge reserve is as follows: .
: 2018 2017
£m - £m
Less than 1 year - 2.6
10 PROVISIONS _
‘ At _ Unwinding At
1 January New of 31 December
‘ , o 2017 provisions  discount 2017
Year ended 31 December 2017 Note £m £m . £m fm
Decommissioning and environmental (a)’ 118.0 29.4 2.3 149.7
' ) At . Unwinding At -
1 January " New of 31December’
: ) . : . 2018 provisions discount 2018
Year ended 31 December 2018 Notes £fm - £m £fm £m
. Decommissioning and environmental (a) 149.7 - (19.0) 23 1330
Other (b) C - 0.1 . - 0.1
149.7 (18.9) 2.3 133.1
2018 2017
Analysis of total provisions £m . £m
Non-current : 133.0 149.7
Current 0.1 -
133.1 149.7

(a) The provision for decommissioning is the discounted future estimated costs of decommissioning the company’s .wind farms. The
decommissioning is expected to occur in the years between 2019 and 2057. The reduction ‘of £19.0 million in the provision in 2018 resulted from

a reassessment of future estimated costs.

(b) ©  The-other category is not sufficiently material to warrant separate dlsclosureA

11 LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

- (a) Analysus of loans and borrowmgs by instrument and maturity |

2018 2017
Instrument ) _Interest rate* Maturity - £fm fm-
Loans with Iberdrola group companies Base + 1% On demand . 320.7 . 372.2
Loan with joint venture Base + 1% On demand 3.0 -
Loans with |berdrola group companies 3.05% fixed 20 December 2027 700.0 700.0°
. - 1,023.7 1,072.2
* Base - Bank of England rate
, . _ 2018 2017.
Analysis of total loans and other borrowings £m " fm -
Non-current 700.0 700.0
Current 323.7 372.2
: 1,072.2 .

1,023.7
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11 LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS cont/nued

_(b) Reconciliation of movements of Ilabllltles to cash flows arising from ﬁnancmg activities

. Liabilities
Loans and other  Loans and other Interest
borrowings . borrowings payable . .
. (Current) o (Nén-current) ~{Current) Tota!
£m . £m £m £m
At 1l January 2017 1,064.8 - 11.5 : 1,076.3
(Decrease)/mcrease in amounts due to Iberdrola - .
group companles ’ (692.6)- 700.0 - 7.4
Interest paid S - - (11.5) (11.5)
Total movements from financing cashflows (692.6) 700.0 (11.5) (4.1) .
Other movements L - - 14.6 14.6
. Total liability-related movements : . - - 14.6 _ 14.6
At 31 December 2017 372.2 700.0 14.6 1,086.8
Liabilities
Loans and other  Loans and other " Interest.
borrowings borrowings payable
{Current) (Non-current) ‘(Current) Total
. R © £m ) £m ~ £m £m
At 1 January 2018 . 372.2 700.0 14.6 1,086.8
Decrease in amounts due to Iberdrola
group companies o (51.5) - - (51.5)
Cash inflows from borrowings o 30 - - 3.0
Interest paid . . ) : - - (35.3) (35.3)
Total movements from fmancmg cash flows (48.5) - {35.3) (83.8)
Other movements . - » - - 26.0 . 260
Total liability-related movements ’ ’ - - © 26.0. 26.0
At 31 December 2018 323.7 700.0 5.3 1,029.0
(c) Borrowing facilities
The company has no undrawn borrowmg facshtles at 31 December 2018 (2017 Enil).
12 DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax provided in the Accounts is as follows:
Property, Derivative Other
plant and financial ° temporary .’
equipment instruments differences ~ Total
. £m ' £m £m . £m
At 1 January 2017 149.0 © 3.5 - ©-152.5
Charge to the income statement 10.4 - - 104
Recorded in the statement of comprehensnve income - (2:9) - (2.9)
At 1 January 2018 ©.159.4 06 - 160.0
Adjustments due to IFRS 9 : - - (0.1) {0.1)
- Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 159.4 . 0.6 (0.1) 159.9
Charge/(credit) to the income statement 78 - (0.1) 7.7. .
. Recorded in the statement of comprehensive income - (0.6) - (0.6) -
At 31 December 2018 167.2 . - (0.2) 167.0

Legislation has been enacted to reduce the rate of UK Corporation Tax to 17% on 1 April 2020. This reduces the tax rates expected to apply when

temporary dafferences reverse and impacts the deferred tax charge.
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13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES ,
2018 2017

) . . fm . £m
Current trade and other payables:, . o '
Payables due to Iberdrola group companies - trade ' : .57 ' 128
Payables due'to Iberdrola group companies - capital : S . 15 - 2.1
Payables due to Iberdrola group companies - interest | : 53 - 146
Payables due to jointly controlled entities - trade - - . . o 3.5 2.3
Trade payables~ ) : 23.7 15.7
Other taxes and social security _ ' L n 0.8 - -
Capital payables and accruals ' o R ‘ 76 9.4 .
Other payables . ' : . <. 4.1 4 Lo
. ) ’ . : 52.2 56.9
Non-current other payables: ' .
Other payables : ' o ’ ' 1.0 | .-
§ N 1.0 v —
14 REVENUE :
(a) Disaggregation of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 )
: : Total
. ) ) . . . £m
- Supply of electricity o '155.2
" Supply of Renewable Obllgatlon Certificates ("ROCs") o o . ’ : 196.8
Other 3 S T ‘ 71.6

423.6

All revenue arises from operations within the UK and the Republic of Ireland. Revenue arising outside the UK is not
- deemed material enough to disclose separately. Revenue from the supply of ROCs is recognlsed at a point in time; all .
other revenue is recognlsed over time.

(b) Accountmg policy
The company recognises revenue to deplct the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
‘reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

(i) Supply of eIectnaty : ,
The supply of electrncnty is a performance obligationsatisfied over time because the customer consumes the benefits of
the electricity at the same time as it is supplied. Volume is used to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of -
the performance obligation as this represents the transfer of electricity to the customer. Revénue is therefore recognised
based on the number of units.supplied at the unitrate specuﬂed in the contract. Units are based on energy volumes that
can be sold on the wholesale market and are recorded on wind farm meters and mdustry -wide tradmg and settlement ,
systems. Invoices are typically raised monthly in arrears and settled within the same month.

(ii) Supply of ROCs

The supply of ROCs is a performance obligation satisfied at a point in time. Revenue is recognised at the point the
customer obtains control of the ROC, which is when the associated electricity is generated, at the unit rate specified in
the contract. Invoices are raised annually and typically settled within a month. '

(iii) Other : .

. Other revenues are recogmsed based on the con5|derat|on specified in a contract with a customer to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur in the future..
The company recognises revenue either at a specific point in'time or over a period of time based on when control is
transferred to the customer based on the performance obllgatlons in thé contract. :

(c) Contract balances : ‘
31December . 1 January

o 2018 . 2018,
: Note £m ) £m
‘Receivables . I . ) - 180.7 135.1

(i) Included within Trade and other receivables (refer to Note 7). :
(i)  Noimpairment Iosses were recognised during the year on receivables and contract assets arising from the company’s contracts with customers.
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15 EMPLOYEE’INFORMATION
(a) Staff costs

2018 2017 ..

. £m £m
Wages and salaries 24.7 - -
Social security costs 2.9 -
Pension and other costs 5.4 -
Total staff costs . 33.0° -
Less: capitalised staff costs Co i : - o (1.2) -
Charged to the income statement e : : .- 31.8 -

.On 1 January 2018, as part ofa Renewables reorgamsatlon the company’s |mmed|ate parent, SPREL, transferred all 367

of its employees to the company.

(b) Employee numbers

The year end and average numbers of employees (full ‘and part tlme) employed by the company, lncludlng executive-

dlrectors where approprlate were:

Yearend Average Year end Average

’ . . 2018 © 2018 2017 2017
Administrative staff S ‘ : o ! 69 - -
- Operations o : S 321 - : 306 - -
To_tal Co . . - 395 . 375 : - -

The year end and average numbers of employees of full-time equivalent staff employed by the company, including

executlve directors where approprlate were:

Year end Average Year end Average
' , .2018 2018 2017 2017
Total : : s s .391 372 g ) - -
16 TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX
‘ ‘ 2018 2017
£fm £m
Property taxes 17.5 15.8
"17 DEPRECIATION-AND AMORTISATION CHARGE, ALLOWANCES AND PROVISIONS .
‘ ) : : S 2018 2017
. £m. £m
Property, plant and equipment depreciation charge _ , 79.2 -73.8
Intangible asset amortisation ’ ' 0.3 0.3
Charges and provisions, allowances and impairment of.assets i ' . 2.2 1.0
L ' : ‘ ‘ ' 81.7 75.1
18 FINANCE COSTS 4 ' S S
' : : ; ‘ 2018 2017
, . £m fm
Interest on amounts due to Iberdrola group companies a : 26.0 14.6
" Unwinding of discount on provisions .- 23 © 23
: . : - 28.3 169
Capitalised interest R (1.0)
i 28.3

15.9
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19 INCOME TAX . : :
2018 . 2017

£m £m
Current tax: : ) , : o . ) . .
UK Corporation tax’ : ' o 334 226
Adjustments in respect of prior years . (1.4) . (2.4) .
Current tax charge for the year . ) i - 34.0 20.2
Deferred tax: : : o .
QOrigination and reversal of temporary dlfferences ' o : o o 7.2 ’ .10.6
Adjustments in respect of prior years ’ . ' 1.2 : ’ 1.0
Impact of tax rate change . ) - . {0.7) . (1.2)
Deferred tax for the year ' . : : ] 7.7 v 10.4
Income tax charge for the year ) : ) L : 41. 7 . : 30 6

The tax charge on proflt on ordmary act|V|t|es for the year varued from the standard rate of .UK Corporatlon Tax
appllcable to the company as follows:

.2018 - 2017
ol . . £m ' . £fm
* Corporation tax at 19% (2017 19.25%) ° ’ . - 455 . o327
Adjustments in respect of prior periods S . ’ ' - (0.2) (1.4)°
Impact of tax rate change o ’ ’ . o o {0.7) - (1.2)
Non-deductible expenses and other permanent differences . ) . . (2.9) N 0.5
Income tax charge for the year . . . ' 41.7 30. 6

Legislation has been enacted to reduce the rate of UK Corporanon Tax to 17% on 1 April 2020. This reduces the tax rates expected to apply when
temporary differences reverse and impacts the deferred tax.charge.

20 DIVIDENDS ' C . .
. 2018 ' 2017 2018 2017

B . pence per ordinary share . pence per ordinary share" £m £m
Interim dividend paid . : 22.3 ’ i 11.3 " 150.0 76.4
- 21 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS '
2018 ° _ '
. B , 2024 and
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 . ‘thereafter Total
: , fm  £m - £fm - £m fm £m £rh
Other contractual commitments 20.2 6.4 24 .. 24 - 24 41.0 74.8
2017
) R ' 2023 and
. ] © 2018 2019 2020 2021 - 2022 thereafter Total
i : £m £m - fm fm £m . fm A £m
',-\

Other contractiial commitments . 20.6 6.7 2.4 2.4 2.4 42.3 76.8
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22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS .
(a) Transactions and ‘balances arising |n the normal course of busmess

2018
Other . .
_ Immediate  Iberdrola Jointly .
UK parent parent ‘group controlléd '
(SPL) (SPREL) companies Subsidiaries entities
. - £m’ £m £m - fm - £m
" . Types of transaction
Sales and rendering of services . . - - 375.1 32.6 0.2 -
_ Purchases and receipt of services o ‘ ' - - (38.5) - (3.9)
* Interest costs B : . (26.0) ‘ - - - -
Changes'in the value of cash flow hedge reserve (3.2) ' S - - -
Dividends received o - . - 35.8 -
Dividends paid =~ = . - . - (150.0) . - -
ECLs recognised in respect of , ' :
Trade receivables ‘ o - . . - -
Balances outstanding ' ' . : ' L '
Trade and other receivables o . ’ - 0.5 - 147.5° 266 . 2.0
. Derivative financial assets o ‘ - - - -
Loans payable - ‘ ' . (1,020.7) - - - . (3.0)
Trade and other payables : ) ) - (21) . - (35) (0.1) (3.5)
Capital payables - . , S S (1.5) - -
Interest payable 4 R ) (5.3) - - - - -
ECLs on’ ' ‘ ' . : ‘
Trade receivables - - . I ' - - - {0.2) - -
2017
- . Other
Immediate iberdrola Jointly
UK parent parent ' " group . controlled
(SPL) (SPREL)  companies _ Subsidiaries entities
C£m £m- . £fm . £m ‘£m
Types of transaction ] ' o o
Sales and rendering of services : o - .- 3028 123 -
Purchases and receipt of serwces . . - - (19.3) ’ (23.5) ’ - (4.2)
Interest costs : D (146) - - - -
Changes in the value of cash flow hedge reserve , (15.4) . . . - - - -
Dividends received ) - . - 19.5 o o-
Dividends paid : ' _ - (76.4) - - -
Balances outstanding _ ’ o . :
Trade and other receivables o : ' - - 1274 2.2 .'3.0
 Derivative financial assets - . - ' 21 - - - -
_ Loans payable C . (1,072.2) . - - - -
Trade and other payables - . ) _ ) S (8.9) - (3.9) - (2.3)
~ Capital payables . ) . - L (2.1) - -
Interest payable o ‘ (14.6) - - -

- i) The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received.
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22 RELATED PARTY.TRANSACTIONS continued

(b) Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the company is set out below As all- (2017 all) of the key
management personnel are remunerated for their work for Renewables, it has not been possible to apportion the
remuneration specifically in respect of services to this company. All six (2017 fnve) of the key management personnel
were remunerated by another Renewables company during both years.

2018 2017

. £m £m
Short-term employee benefits ' . . 1,140 - 1,262
Post-employment benefits . _ ’ ' C : . 231 . - 184
Termination benefits o 4 ‘ ' - 652 -
Share-based payments - =~ . . - . . - 835 857. -
: : 2,858 2,303

{c) Dlrectors remuneratuon : .

The total remuneration of the directors that prowded qualifying services to the company is shown below. As these
directors are remunerated for their work for Renewables, .it has not been possible to apportion the remuneration
specifically in respect of services to this company. All five (2017 four) of the dlrectors were remunerated by another
Renewables company during both years :

- 2018 2017

Executive directors ' C : : o . £m . £m
Aggregate remuneration in respect of quallfylng services . ) . "1,164 - 1,287

Aggregate contributions payable to a defined contnbutlon pens:on scheme o .27 ' 267

" Aggregate compensation for loss of office ) . o : . 652 . -
Number of directors who'exercised share options = ' 3 3
Number of directors who received shares under a long-term incentive scheme 5 4
Number of directors accruing retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme 3 2
Number of directors accruing retirement benefits under a defined contribution scheme 1 1

R 7 . g

' . , - : 2018 - 2017

" Highest paid director A : - Note . fm £m
" Aggregate remuneration - - . L ) S 507 557
Accrued pension benefit ) ) L : i) 96 . 77

(i) - Theaccrued pension benefit for the highest paid director représents the value accrued as at the year end.
(i} The highest paid director received shares under a long-term incentive scheme during both years. .
(i)  The highest paid director exercised share options during both years.

" (d) Ultimate parent company
The |mmed|ate parent company is SPREL The reg|stered office of SPREL is 320 St. Vmcent Street Glasgow, G2 SAD

The directors regard Iberdrola, S A. (incorporated in Spain) as the ultlmate parent company, which is also the parent
company of the largest group in which the results of the company. are consolidated. The-parent company of the smallest
group in whlch the results of the company are consolidated is Scottish Power UK plc (”SPU K”).

Copies of the consolidated Accounts of Iberdrola, S A. (incorporated in Spain) may be obtained from Iberdrola, S.A., at its
registered office, Torre Iberdrola, Plaza Euskadi 5, 48009, Bilbao, Spain. Copies of the consolidated: Accounts of SPUK may
be obtalned from ScottishPower-UK plc, at its reglstered offlce, 320 st. Vlncent Street, Glasgow, G2 5AD.

In addltlon to the company'’s parent undertakmgs disclosed above, the companys other related undertaklngs are
dlsclosed in Note 5..

23 AUDITOR REMUNERATION . -
‘ 2018 2017

. o . : £000 - £000
Audit of the company's annual Accounts: : . . . - 28 .- 29

43



 SCOTTISHPOWER RENEWABLES (UK) LIMITED
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24 GOING CONCERN :
The-company’s business activities together with the factors Ilker to affect its’ future development and posmon are set
outin the Strateglc Report on pages 1 to 5.

The company has recorded a profit after tax in both the current and ‘previous financial years and the company’s balance
sheet shows that it has net current Ilabllltles of £211 4 million and net assets of £804. 6 million at its most recent balance-
sheet date.. . . . '

The company is ultimately owned by Iberdrola, SA and it partucupates in the Iberdrola group’s centralised treasury
. arrangements and so shares banking facilities with its parent companies and fellow ‘subsidiaries. As a consequence, the
- ‘company depends, in ‘part, on the ability of the Iberdrola group to continue as a going concern. The directors have
considered _the company’s funding relationship with Iberdrola to date and have considered available relevant
mformatnon relating to Iberdrola’s ability to continue as a going concern. In addition, the directors have no reason to
believe that the Iberdrola group does not have the ab|I|ty to and will not continue to fund the company, should it

become necessary, to enable it to continue in operational existence. : :

On the basis’ of these considerat|ons, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the compahy will be able to:

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Therefore, they adopt the gomg concern basis of accountlng
in preparing the Accounts .
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